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§ IJJfJ I LOpez-Vega,CPA,PSC 
Certified Public A~cuwllartlS I Management Atlvisc>rs 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Dorado 
Dorado, Puerto Rico 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

• Anu;ric1m ln:.t11111c ur 
C i:r1iticd Puhhc Ac.·:>:1Wllll!\l! 

• Jlu1mu Rceo Sot:1cw ii 
Certiflcll Nbl1t. Mco•m1:ui1~ 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Municipality of Dorado, Puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2004, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the· 
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
and the provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits. of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations". Those standards and OMB 
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the respective financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the respective financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of 
Dorado, Puerto Rico, as of June 30. 2004, and the respective changes in financial 
position ,and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Calle Parana # Hi86. El C\;rczal San Juun. r n 00926-314.S , Tel (787) 777-&04•1 ' Fax {787) 777 ·8045 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT {Continued) 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 11 and the Budgetary 
Comparison Schedule-General Fund on page 50 through 51 are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements but are supplementaty information required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, 
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of the r:equired supplementary information. However, we 
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 6, 2004 on our consideration of the Municipality's internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial 
statements of the Municipality of Dorado, taken as whole. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Government~ and Non- Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the respective 
financial statements. The information in that schedule has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

San Juan, Puerto Rico 
December 6, 2004 

Stamp No. 2019424 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of this report. 

11 IM I Ltipez-Yega,CPA.PSC 
Certified Publl.: l\.\."l;O•ml;.nls I Ma11agemef11 l\1h·1sors 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the Municipality of Dorado, we offer readers of the Municipality's 
basic financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial 
activities of the Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. This 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) include comparative data, and it has 
been designed accordingly with the following goals: 

a) 
b) 
c) 

d) 

e) 

Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, 
Provide an overview of the Municipality's financial activity, 
Identify changes in the Municipality's financial position (its ability to 
address the next and subsequent year challenges), 
Identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved 
budget,) and; 
Identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

Since the MD&A is designed to focus on the current year activities, resulting changes 
and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Municipality's 
financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Municipality net assets increased by $3.497,754. 
• In the fund financial statements, the governmental activities revenue increased 

$1,067,130 (or 4%} while governmental activities expenditures increase 
$477,187 (or 2%). 

• The General Fund (the primary operating fund) reflected, on a current financial 
resource basis, an increase of $955,118. 

• On a budgetary basis, actual expenditures exceeded actual revenues by 
${83,557). 

• The Municipality issued bonds amounting to $5,125,000 to finance the 
acquisition of land and building, public works, capital improvements and 
constructions of different projects. 

• The Municipality issued a note payable amounting to $370,000 to acquire 
equipments. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 301 2004 

Usf ng This Annual Report 

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the 
focus from previous financial statements. The new focus is on both the Municipality as 
a whole {government-wide) and the major individual funds. Both perspectives 
{government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, 
broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or government to government) and 
enhance the Municipality's accountability. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide users of the 
financial statements with a broad overview of the Municipality's finances In a manner 
similar to private-sector companies. 

The Statement of Net Asset presents information on all of the Municipality's assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between both reported as net assets. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of the Municipality is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Municipality's net 
assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless 
of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in 
the Statement of Activities that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
The Statement of Acti'vities is focused on both the gross and net cost of various 
activities, which are provided by the government's general tax and other revenues. This 
is intended to summarize and simplify the user's analysis of cost of various 
governmental services. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's 
most significant funds, not the Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has only one 
kind of fund which is the governmental fund. 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the Government Wide Financiat Statements. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

However, unlike the Government Wide Financial Statements, Government Fund 
Financial Statements, focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, 
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such information is useful in evaluating the Municipality's near term financial 
requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government 
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for 
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in 
the government wide financial statements. By doing so, users of the basic financial 
statements may better understand the long-term impact of the Municipality's near 
term financial decisions. Both of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 

Infrastructure Assets 

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure-roads, bridges, 
underground pipes [unless associated with a utility], etc.) have not been reported nor 
depreciated in government financial statements. GASS 34 requires that these assets 
be valued and reported within the Governmental column of the Government-Wide 
Statements. Additionally, the government must elect to either (a) depreciate these 
assets over their estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset management 
designed to maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. If the 
government develops the asset management system (the modified approach) which 
periodically (at least every third year}, by category, measures and demonstrated its 
maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may 
record its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. The information about the 
condition and maintenance of condition of the government infrastructure assets 
should assist financial statement users in evaluating a local government and its 
performance over time. 
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I COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENrs DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Assets 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a 
government's financial position. The Municipality's combined net assets (excess of 
assets over liabilities) totaled $7 ,373,897 at the end of 2004, compared to 
$3,876,143 at the end of the previous year, as restated. 

ANANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Assets (Continued) 
Condensed Statement of Net 
Aase ta 2004 2003 Change 
Current assets $23,535.047 $17,417,962 $6, 117,085 
Capital assets 18.241.397 14,777,839 3,463.558 

Total assets 41 ,776,444 32,195,801 9,580,643 

Current liablllties 6.859.445 5.376.787 1.482.858 
Noncurrent liabilities 27,543,102 22,9-42,870 4,600,232 

Total liabilities 34.402.547 28.319.657 6,082.890 

Invested In capital assets. net 
of related debt (3.425,962) (2,975.521) (450,441) 

Restricted 13,481 ,013 9,499,414 3.981,599 
unrestncted (2,681, 154) (2 .. 647,750) (33,404) 

Total net assets $7,373.897 $3,876,143 $3,497,754 

--- ---
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Changes in Net Assets 

The Municipality's net assets increased by $3,497, 754. Approximately 59 perce.nt of 
the Municipality's total revenue came from taxes, while 38 percent resulted from 
grants and contributions, including federal aid. Charges for Services provided 2 
percent of the total revenues. Interest earnings and miscellaneous provided 1 percent 
of the total revenues. The Municipality's expenses cover a range of services. The 
largest expenses were for genera'f government, public works and health and welfare. As 
follow, is presented a comparative analysis of government-wide data. In this analysis 
was determined the percentage change in revenues and expenditures from prior year 
to current year. 

Condensed Statement of ActMtJes 2004 2003 Chanse % 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $617,444 $530,549 $86,895 16% 
Operating gfants and contributions 5,756,713 6,233,334 (476,621) (8%) 
Capital grants and contributions 3,715,261 1,326,563 2,388,698 180% 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 11,649,792 9,747,286 1.902,506 20% 
Other local taxes 2,364,343 3,813,748 (1 ,449,405) (38%) 
Municipal license tax 3,465,032 3,488,017 (22,985) (1%) 
Grants and contributions not 

resbicted to specific programs 1,753,989 3,226,941 (1.472,952) (46%) 
Interest and Investment earnings 194,363 306,304 (111,941) (37%) 
Gain (Loss) on retirement of 

Capital Assets (710) (710) 100% 
Miscellaneous 213,032 133,628 79,404 59% 

Total revenues 29,729,259 28,806,370 922,889 3% 

Ex penses: 
General government 9,611,856 8,319,809 1,292,047 16% 
Public safety 1,601,679 1,431,360 170,319 12% 
Public works 6,n5,367 8,124,865 (1,349,498) (H%) 
Culture and recreation 745,667 695,492 50,175 7% 
Health and welfare 4,721,072 4,785,521 (64.449) (1%} 
Economic development 1,007,311 2 ,269,856 (1,262,545) (56%) 
Community development 550,263 407,857 142,406 3S% 
Urban development 169,301 169,301 100% 
Other 73,177 (73,177) (100%} 
.Interest on long·term debt 1,048,989 1,054,548 !5,559l (1%) 

Total expenses 26,231,505 27,162,485 ~930,980~ (3%) 

Change in net assets 3,497,754 1,643,885 1,853,869 113% 

Net assets, beginning of year 3,876,143 2,232,258 1,643,885 74% 

Net assets, end of year $7,373,897 $3,876,143 $3,497,754 90% 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Changes In Net Assets (Continued) 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near­
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is 
useful in assessing the Municipality's financing requirements. In particular, 
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $15,933,563, a increase of $4,871,518 in 
comparison with the prior year. There are reservations of fund balance amounting to 
$14,896,542. This is the fund balance that it is not available for new spending 
because it has already been committed 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders 
of the prior fiscal year ($979,558), 2) to pay debt service ($4,627,930), 3) to pay for 
capital projects ($8,875,039) and 4) for other purposes($ 414,015). 

Within the governmental funds, it is included the general fund which is the chief 
operating fund of the Municipality. As of June 30, 2004, the general fund has a fund 
balance of$ 1,037 ,111. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Over the course of the year, the Municipality Council revised the Municipality's budget 
in order to include increases in revenues that were identified during the course of the 
fiscal year based on current developments that positively affected the Municipality's 
finances. Increases in budgeted expenditures were al.so made since the law mandates 
a balanced budget 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENTS AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The Municipality's investment in capital assets for Governmental Activities as of June 
30, 2004, amounts to $24,142,048, net of accumulated depreciation of $9,172,177, 
leaving a net book value of $14,969,871. For Business - Type Activities investments in 
capital assets as of June 30, 2004, amounts to $3,971,648, net of accumulated 
depreciation of $700,122, leaving a net book value of $3,271,'526. This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure and 
construction in progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable 
and of value only to the state, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage 
systems, lighting systems, and similar items. 

The total increase in the Municipality's investment in capital assets for Governmental 
Activities in the current fiscal year was about 23% in terms of net book value. 
Depreciation charges for the year totaled $ 1,106,104. 

The total increase in the Municipality's investment in capital assets for 'Business-Type 
Activities in the current fiscal year was about .1% in terms of net book value. 
Depreciation charges for the year totaled $ 43,037. 

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through 
bond issuances. The proceeds from bond issuances designated for construction 
activities are committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any 
other purposes. As of June 30, 2004, the Municipality has $7,898,501 of unexpended 
proceeds from bond issuances that are committed to future construction activities in 
governmental Activities and $409,924 in Business-Type Activities. 

Debt Administration 

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general 
obligation municipal bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit 
and taxing power of each municipality may be pledged. 

The applicable law also requires that in order for a Municipality to be able to issue 
additionar general obligation bonds and notes such Municipality must have sufficient 
"payment capacity". 

10 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S AND DJSCUSSION ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CAPJTAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION- (CONTINUED): 

Act No. 64 provides that a municipality has sufficient Npayment capacity" to incur 
additional general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality's Redemption 
Fund and the annual amounts collected with respect to such Municipality's Special 
Additional Tax (as defined below), as projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service to 
maturity the Municipality's outstanding general obligation debt and the additional 
proposed general obligation debt ("Payment Capacity"). 

The Municipality is required under applicable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in 
such amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal 
bonds and notes. In addition, principal of and interest on all general obligation 
municipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the 
issuance of general obligation bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien 
on the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues. Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax 
revenues would be available to make debt service payments on general obligation 

municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the 
Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption Fund, 
are not sufficient to cover such debt service. It has never been necessary to apply 
Basic Taxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of the Municipality. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal 
grants to carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal 
taxes have been very predictable with increases of approximately five percent Federal 
grant revenues may very if new grants are available but the revenue also is very 
predictable. 

Those factors were considered when preparing the Municipality's budget for the 2004-
2005 fiscal years. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users {citizens, 
taxpayer, customers, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the 
Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability. If you 
have questions about the report or need additional financial information, contact the 
Municipality's Chief Financial Officer at P.O Box 588, Dorado, Puerto Rico 00646-
0588, Telephone (787) 796-1230. 
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 

Munlctpallty of Dorado 

Statement of Net Assel:s 

June 30, 2004 

Prlmaiy G!>vernme_nt 

G.Ollernmental Business-Type 

Activities Aetlvitles Total 

Assets 

Casll and casll eciu1valents $ 8.3l'.4.414 $ 345,789 $ 8,660.203 

~Sil witti flscat agent 12.526,1168 409,924 !2.936.3.92 

Accounts receivable: 

Municipal license tax 22,702 22,702 

Intergovernmental 940,459 940,459 

Federal grants 437,905 437,905 

Other 5 11.093 26,293 537,386 

capital assets 

Land. lmp1ovements. and construction In process 5,688,669 434,190 6.122,859 

O:tller capital assets, net of depreciation 9,281.202 2,837.336 12,118,538 

Total capital assets 1-4,969,871. 3,271,526 16,241.397 

Total assets 3 7,722,912 4,053,532 41.776,444 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued llabllltles 1.876.229 7.295 1,883.524 

Due to other govetnmental entitles 894,983 894,983 

Deferred revenues: 

Muoiclpal license tax 3.083.636 3.083.636 

Federal grant revenues 505.557 505.557 

Interest PaYBllle 435.971 55.774 49L745 

Noncorrent lleblllUes: 

Due Within one yeBI 2,928,327 206,560 3,134,887 

Due in more than one year 23,066,986 ~.341.229 2.4,408,215 

Total llabllitles 32,791,.689 1.Gi0,858 34.402.547 

NetAsseis 

lrivested In capital a$$ets. net of related detit (5.1.49,699) 1.723.737 (3,425.962) 

Restricted for: 

ca pita I projects 8,875,039 8,875,039 

Debt service 4,191,959 4.191;9!l9 

Other purpose 414,015 41~ .. 015 

unrestncte<J 1aericlt) (3,400.091) 718.937 (2,681.154) 

Tota l net assets $ 4.931.223 s 2.442,674 $ 7,373,897 

The notes to the financial statements are an integfal part of this statement. 
12 



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 

Munlclpallty of Dorado 

Statement of ActlvlUes 

For tile Year Ended June 30, 2004 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Program Revenues Chani;es In Net Assets 

OperaUng Capital Primary Govemment 
Chaiges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business.type 

Functions/Programs Expenses 5el'lices Contributions ConU1butlons Activities ActMtles Total 

Governmental AcUvttles: 
General government $ 9,509,004 $ 3i0,214 s 162 .• 193 $ s (9.036.597) s $ (9,038,597) 

Public safety 1,601,679 2,155 65,960 (1.533.564) (i,533,5154) 

Public workS 6.775.387 2.242 1.505.984 (5.287.1.41) (5.287 .141) 

Health and welfare 4,721,072 4,592,413 (128.659) (128.659} 

Culture and recreation 745,687 867 (744.800) (744,800) 

Econo1111c development 1,007.311 933,038 2,091 (72,182) (72,lB2) 

community development 550,2'63 1.938.987 1.388.724 1.388,7.24 

Urt>en Development 169.301 268,199 98,898 98,898 

Interest on long.term debt 927,549 (927.5491 (927,549) 

Total governmental 11Ct1V1t1es 28.007.2.t3 312.369 5,756,713 3,715.261 (16,222.870) (16,222.870) 

Business TYPll Activities: 
General Government 102,852 305,o?S 202,223 202,223 

Interest on lone-term deot 121.440 (121.440) (121.4401 

Total business type actMtles 2:2<4,292 305,075 80,783 80,783 

Total Prtmaiy Government $ 28.231.505 $ 817.444 $ 5,758,713 s 3,715,281 118,222.870) 80.783 (18,142,087) 

General revenues: 
Propeey ta~es 11,649,792 11,849,792 

Otner local wes 2.384,343 2,364,343 

MUnlclpal llcense tax 3.465,032 3,46-5,032 

Grants and contr1buuons not restricted to spec1nc programs 1,753,989 1.753.989 
Interest and investment earnings 194,383 194,363 

Gain (loss) on Retirement or Capital Assets (7.10) (710) 

Miscellaneous 213.032 213,032 

nansfers 3101000 (310,000) 

Total 11eneral revenues and transfers 19,949,841 (310,000) 19,839,841 

Ct\anlfjt In net assets 3.726,971 (229.217) 3.497,754 
Net~ets - begJnnlng, as restated. 1.204.252 2,671.891 3,878,143 

Net assets· epdlng s 4,931.223 J 21442.674 s 7,373:897 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 13 



COmmonwealth of Puerto Rico 

Munlclpallty of Dorado 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 

I 
June 30, 2004 

Special Debt cap1ta1 Ot.her Total 
General Revenue Fund Service ProJel!tS Fund - Local Governmental Govemm·enlal 

F'und other Fede'lll Grants Fllnd Staie and Federal Grants Funds funds 

/WelS 
Casi\ aqd casll eQl>illalents s 5.476.760 s 351,761 s s 1.821,.360 s 664,533 ' 8.314.414 
Casn Witll fiscal agent 103,960 4,524.007 7,898.501 12,526,468 

~ccounts re<:eivablw. 
Munoeipei llceose tax 7,045 7.045 
Intergovernmental 248.848 109.105 101,700 480..806 940.459 
Fec:terill Granls 437,905 A37.905 

Due from other fun!IS 666.647 39,785 706,432 
Cl/let 64,905 2.862 67.781 

Total assets s 6.568,165 s 829.45"1 $4,635.974 s 9.821.561 $ 1.145.339 $ 23.000,490 

Uabllitles and Fund Balances 
Lfab1l]lles : 
Accounts payable and 11ccrued t1abillt1es. $ 429,131 4U,719 s s 946.522 s 88,85"7 $ 1.876.229 
Due to ottter governmental entlues 694.983 894-,983 
Dile to otller fundS 39,785 59,478. 8,0441 599,125 706.432 

Deferred revenues: 
Munletpal 11eense taJt 3,083,636 3.083.638 
Federal i)'llnl revenues 328.254 177.303 505,557 

Total Oabllllles 4.447.sa& 7991151 8·.044 946.522 885.2115 7.068.837 

Fi.Ind balances: 
Reserved for: 

£nctJmbrances 979.558 979.5158 
CsPllal projects 8.875.039 8,875,039 
Other purpo$e:S 30,000 280,05'1 310.054 
Debt. servk:e runa 4,627.930 4,627,930 

Umeserveo: 
Designated for speclflc tuna purpose 103.981 103,961 

Undesigned .l.037.Ul 1,037.111 

TOI&! fund balar1Ce5 2.120.630 .J0,000 ¢,S27.930 8.875.039 280,054 15,833.,653 

Total llablllties and fund ba.lanoes $ 6.568.165 s 829.451 $4,635.974 s 9,821.561 .$ 1.145.339 

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the stetemeht of net assets are different because: 

Accrual basis of aix:ounti~ account recetva.bles recol[llitoo in govemment·wloe llnanoal statements 458.983 

Ca~'tal assets used in governmental activities a1e not financial resources and. therefOle, ere not reported In ll'M! funds 14,989,87.l 

Long.term liabllltles and accrue interest are ·not due and payable in the current ger1od. !Ind therefore, are not 
reported In the funds (28.431.284) 

Net essetS of governmental atllvltles s -4.931,223 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral par:t of this statement 14 



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Munr~lpallty ot Dorado 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund 8alan1 
Governmental Funds 

For the \'ear Ended June 30, 2004 

General Sped al Debt Cap It. 
F'und Revenue Fvnd Sorvlco Projects rum 

Other Federal Grants Fund State. and Fede 

Revenues 
Property taxes $ 9 ,042.124 s s 2.607,668 $ 

Municipal ucense taxes ... 58? 761 

Licenses.permits and other local taxes 2.189-616 

lntergovernmenlal 1.916.18.l 2.243 l,t "'<#"-. f !l'J 3.947.T38 
Rent of property 301.875 301.875 
fines al'lCI folfeltures 2.155 2.155 
lntere5t U4.353 194.363 
Federal grants 1,455.842 '4,295.399 5 ,751.241 
Miscellaneous 1T8.4U 24.387 20.953 223.751 

Total revenues 17,412,486 .1.4S2.472 2,607,668 1.037.562 5.308.104 27.848.292 

E1penelltures 
Current 
General govemmen1 9.327.928 8.031 6.315 9,342.274 
Public 511feiy l.256.TL4 77.682 100.537 1.435.133 

Public wor!<S 5.833.015 3.727 1.068.171 SA93 6,91.3.406 

Health anel welfare 273.119 4 .449.233 4 .722,352 
Culture and recreation 535.711 2.006.023 21,594 2.563,388 
Economic develOpment. 2.091 1,005.220 1.007,311 
communn:y development 900.233 900,233 

Urban development 268.199 268.199 

Debt sel'l1ce: 
Principal 14,943 1,500,750 1,575.693 

Interest .l4,178 874.607 .888,785 

Total e)lpend1tur~ 17,042.549 1,$25,251 2.375.357 3,1)82,225 S.591.392 29,616.174 

Ellcess (deficiency) or reven.ues over 
(under) 11J1PE!lld1tures 369.937 t42.n9J 232.311 (2,044,663) (283.288) U.768.4821 

Other ftm1ncln& soun:es <-> 
Transfers 1n 310.000 1:2.779 360,824 126.216 869.819 

Transfers out (559,8191 (559,819) 

Long term debt 1sso.ance 835,000 5,495,000 6.330.000 

Total otner fi'nancmg sources 1uses1 e~.181 72.779 360,824 5,49!5.000 126.2.16 6,640,000 

Net change on rund balances 955.118 30.000 593,135 3,450.337 (151,0721 4,871.518 

F11nd balance. beginning. as restated 1.165.512 4,034.795 5,424.702 437.126 11.062.135 

"""a balance, ending $ 2,120,630 s 30.000 s 4,527.930 8,875.039 280;054 ui.~.653 

The notes to the .financial statements are an Integral part of this statement 
15 
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 

Municipality of Dorado 

Recondllatlon of the Statement of Revenues. 

Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balancaof 

Govemmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004 

Net Change In Fund Balances - Total Govemmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental actiVities in the Statement of ActlVitles are different because: 

Prior Vear Account Receivables reported in the Governmental Fund Financial Statem,ents as revenues, but reversed In the 
Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. 

Account Receivables reported in Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets cbllected after year end, but not available soon 
enough to pay current liablllties. and ttierefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds. 

Donations of capital Assets from outside parties, do not provide current financial resources in Governmental Funds, but the 
transaction must be reflected in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets based on the fair value of the donated 
property, 

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However In the Government-Wide Statement of ActMtles and 
Changes in Net Assets, the cost or thOse assets Is allocated over their estimated usef\Jl lives as depreciation expense. This 
is the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period. 

Loss on Retirements of capital Assets ls reported in the Government-Wide Statements of ActJvities and Change In Net 
Assets, but they do not require the use of current fin<'!ncial resources. Therefore. Loss on Retirement of capital Assets is not 
reported as expenditures In Governmental Funds Flnancial Statements. 

Depreciation Expense on capital Assets Is reported In the Government-Wide Statements of Activities and Change in Net 
Assets, 'but they do not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, Depreciation expense ls not reported as 
expenditures in Governmental Fl.Inds Financial Statements. 

Interest Expense change Is reported In the Government-Wide Statement of ActMties and Change in Net Assets. but not 
require the use of current finanofal resources. Therefore, Interest expense change is not reported as expenditures In 
Governmental Funds Financial Statements. 

Long Term Debt issuances are reported In the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets, but not require the use of current 
ffnanclal resources. Therefore Long Term debt issuances are not reported as expenditures in Governmental Funds Financial 
Statements. 

Long Term Debts payments are reported as expenditures In the Governmental Funds Financial Statements Which require the 
use of current financial resources. Therefore Long Term debts payments are not reported as expenditures in the 
Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Change in Net Assets. 

Change In Landfill Accrual 

Bonds proceeds provides current financial resources to Governmental FunclS. but Issuing debt Increase long-term liabilities 
1n the Government-Wide statement of Net Assets. Repayment of l)(>nd principal is an expenditure In Governmental Funds, 
but the repayment reduces long ·term liabllties in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets. This Is the amount by 
which the debt proceeds exceed debt service Pfincipal payments. 

Change In Net ASsets of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part.of this statement 

$ 4 ,871.518 

(384,112) 

458.983 

1.501.730 

3,11.1,679 

(710) 

(1,106,104) 

(38,763) 

(154,024) 

240,145 

55,879 

(4.829.250) 

$ 3,726,971 
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COMMONWE.Al..T>I OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPAUTY OF DORADO 
STATEMENT Of N£T ASSETS 

PRCIPIETARY FIMCHUSNESS TYPE ACTMTY..fNTERPRISE FUND 
VEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

Busloes.s Type TOOll Business TyJ)e 
AetlYIUy At11Yltly 

fnle!J!rlse Enterprise 

Cunent Assets 
Casn and cesh equ1valon1:1 $ 345.789 • 345.789 
cash wtth fiscal ag,int 409,924 409.924 
Accounts receivable; 
1nternat t>atences 

Other 28.293 26.293 

Total current assets 782.006 782.006 

Honcurrent Assets 
CaP!tal Assets: 
Property, Plant and eqUlpmant: 
Land 383,790 .388,790 
BuUdlng 3,537,458 3.537,458 
Constructlon In progress 45.400 45,400 
Aci::umulaled depreciation 1100,1221 1100.1221 

Total non-current assets 3.271,526 3.271.526 

Total assets 4 .053,532 4,053,532 

Cu rrtnt Uabllltles 
Accounts Payeblt$ 7,295 7.295 
Revenue Funo-Banco Santander Loan 206.560 206.560 
Interest Payable-Banco Santanoer I.Dan 55774 55.774 

Total cunent Uabilibu 289.629 269.629 

Honwrrent Uablltles 
Revenue Ful\0-Banco 5antanC!et l04fl 1.341,229 1.341.229 

Total current babtlitles 1 .341.229 1.,341.229 

Total 11at11li1Jes 1,610.858 1..610.asa 

Net Assets 
tnve,tea 1n Capital ~seis, net or related oebt l,723.737 1,723,737 
Unrestricted 718,937 718937 

fatal Net ASSelS s 2.442,674 ' 2.442,674 

The notes to the financial statements are en Integral part of tilts statement. 1.7 



Openitlng Rll\'enuesr 
Ctiarges tor seiv1ces 

Torar operaun1111111enuos 

Operating Expenses: 
OpereUon~ end melnteneoce 
Oeorec1at1on and Aniortlzstlon 

Total operall!lg expeno1tu1es 

OperaUng Income (Loss) 

Non-operatlnf revenues (t!XpensM)! 
ln1Sres1 Eie>ense 

Total non-oprabng revenues (ex.penses) 

Income (Loss) berore ~srers 

T ransrers ICMl 

Olange 1n Net Assets 
Total n•t ass•t.s-blllllm•n& 
Total net asset5-eno1ng 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO lllCO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

STATEMENT OF llEVENUES, EXPENSES MD CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
PflOPIETARV FUNOS-eUSlllESS TYPE ~-EHTI:RPRISE FUND 

YEAR EHD£l> JlNE 30,200' 

$ 

s 

llUSlness · T)lle 
ACIM!les 

Entl!fp!!se 

305,075 

4,435 
98417 

102.8!52 

202.223 

jl21.440) 

1121.«01 

80.783 

j310,000) 

(229,217) 
2,671.891 
2,442,674 s 

Total lluslness ·Type 
Adlvltles 
Enterprise 

305075 

30S,075 

4,435 

98417 

102,852 

202,223 

!121,440! 

1121.440! 

80.783 

1310.000! 

(229.2171 
2.671.891 
2.442.674 

Ille notes to the financial statements are an integral part or this statement. 1B 



COMMOJ'WEALTil Of PUERTO RICO 
MUH:~IPAL·rf OF DORADO 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY fUNO- BUSINES.S TYPE ACTIVnY· EIITTJIPRISE F\JND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 200-4 

cash Aows from Ooerattog ActMUes: 

Receipts from Customers 
Payment to Supptlers 
Interest paid 

Transfers out to the General Fund-

Net cash ProV!aeo (USedJ 'by Operating ActMtles 

cash Bows from C;Jpltal -and Belated FJ_nancfnc ActM_tles: 

Construction 1n Progress 
Repayment of Revenue Bond 

Net cash Provided (Used) In C8pltal and Related Financing Activities 

Net Decrease In cash ancl C8sl't with Asc:al Agent, Restrk:tea 

CaSh and Cash with Fiscal Agent at Beginning of Period, Restricted 

cash and Cash with FlsC8I Agent at End of Period, Restricted 

BKQndUat!on pt ()pe@ilQg Income to Net Clsh Pmvtdcll lUsecll bx 
Operating ActMtles: 

Operating lnCQITle 

Adjusbnents to Reconcile Operating Income to Net cash Used by Operating Activities: 

Depreciatlon 

Interest Receivables 
other Receivables 
Accrued El\penses 
Retatea COrppany 

Total Adjustments 

Net cash Provided (Used) by Operaflng Activities 

Tl'le notes to the financial statements are an integral part or this statecnent 

$ 306.784 
(7,120) 

(124,708) 
(310,000) 

(135,044) 

(45.400) 
(87,016) 

(132.416) 

{267.460) 

1.,023;1.73 

$ 755.713 

$ (229~17) 

88,437 
(3,266) 

(13,704) 
7,294 

15,412 

-94,U3 

s (135,044) 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Municipality of Dorado {the Municipality) was founded on the year 1842. The 
Municipality's governmental system consists of an executive and legislature body. It is 
governed by a Mayor and a fourteen member Municipal Legislature who are elected for a 
four-year term. 

The Municipality provides public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and 
welfare, community development, education, and other miscellaneous services. 

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the Municipality conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") as 
applicable to governmental units. 

In June 1999. the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASS} issued Statement No. 
34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's and Discussion and Analysis for State 
and Local Governments." This Statement, known as the Reporting Model, provides for the 
most significant change in financial reporting for state and local governments in over 20 
years and affects the way the Municipality prepares and presents financial information. The 
Statement was adopted as of July 1, 2002. In addition to this Statement, GASB Statement 
No. 37, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State 
and Local Governments: Omnibus" and GASB Statement No. 38, ucertain Financial 
Statement Note Disclosures" have been adopted and are reflected in these financial 
statements. 

As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalization 
of local government infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.}. This requirement 
permits an optional four-year delay for fmplementation to fiscal year 2007. The Municipality 
has elected to delay the capitalization of infrastructure. 

20 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

A. Component Units 

In evaluating how to define the Municipality for financial reporting purposes, management 
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential 
component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of Statement 
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, of the GASB. The basic, but not the only criterion for 
including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is if elected officials of a 
primary government are financially accountable for the entity. Financial accountability 
exists if the primary governmental appoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body, 
and if either one of the following conditions exist: the primary government can impose its 
will on the other entity or the potential exists for the other entity to (1) provide specific 
financial benefits to or (2) impose specific financial burdens on the primary government. A 
second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is if the nature and 
significance of the relationship between the entity and a primary government are such that 
to exclude the entity from the financial reporting entity would render the financial 
statements misleading or incomplete. GAAP details two methods of presentation: blending 
the financial data of the component unit's balances and transactions in a manner similar to 
the presentation of the Municipality's balances and transactions or discrete presentation of 
the component unit's financial data in columns separate from the Municipality's balances 
and transactions. 

8. Government-wide and fund financial statements 

Financial information of the Municipality is presented in this report as follow: 

1. Management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and 
provides an analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities. 

2. The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities} report information on all the activities of the Municipality and its 
component units, if any. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-typed activities, 
if any, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. lnterfund 
activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the duplicating effect on 
assets and liabilities within the governmental activities. 

21. 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALllY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment is offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that 
are charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported ins1ead as general revenues. 

3. Fund financial statements focus on information about the Municipality's major 
governmental funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. The Municipality reports the following major 
governmental funds: 

General Fund- is the accounting entity in which all governmental activity, except that 
which is required to be accounted for in another fund, is accounted for. Its revenues 
consist mainly of taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenue, charges for 
services and other. 

Special Revenue Fund - Other Federal Grants- Is the accounting entity in which 
revenues derived from the federal grants, is accounted for. The use and limitations of 
each special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal statutes. 

Debt Service Fund - is the accounting entity used to account for the resources 
accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term general 
obligation bonds of governmental funds. 

Capital Project Fund - Local and State Grants - is the accounting entity in which 
revenues derived from local funds, state or other restricted revenue sources related to 
capital projects, is accounted for. The uses and limitations of each capital project fund 
are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 

22 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Proprietary Fund Types: 
The Enterprise Fund, which was established in June 1996, is used to account 'for 
operations (1) that are financed and operated in a similar manner as private business 
enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs ( expenses, including 
depreciation} of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis, 
are financed or recovered primary through uses, charges; or (2) where the governing 
body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, 
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability, or other purposes. The enterprise fund of the Municipality 
includes land and buildings known as ueommercial Pavilion Rafael Hernandez Colon" 
located in 349 Mendez Vigo Street at Dorado, Puerto Rico. The main source of income 
comes from rent received from spaces rented with formal contracts. 

4. The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user's 
understanding of the basic financial statements. 

5. Required supplementary information such as the budgetary comparison schedule­
general fund and other types of data required by GASB. 

6. Notes to the budgetary comparison schedure-general fund. 

C. Financial reporting presentation 

The accounts of the Municipality are organized on the basis of funds, each if which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for 
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund 
equity, revenues, and expenditures. Fund types are as follows: 

General Fund- Is the operating fund of the Munic;pality. It is used to account for all 
governmental activity, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Fund - Local and State Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to 
account for revenues derived from local funds, state grants or other restricted revenue 
sources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by 
Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - {CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIACANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Financial reporting presentation 

Special Revenue Fund - Section 8 - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for 
revenues derived from section 8 choice voucher program. The uses and limitations of each 
special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 

Special Revenue Fund - Head Start - Is the accounting entity in which revenues derived 
from the federal agency are used to provide comprehensive health, educational, nutritional, 
social, and other developmental services primarily to economically disadvantaged 
preschool children (ages 3 to 5) and infants and toddler (birth through age 3) so that the 
children will attain school readiness. 

Special Revenue Fund - Other Federal Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to 
account for revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each special 
revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 

Capital Projects Funds - Local, State and Federal Grants - Capital Project Funds are used 
to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital 
facilities. 

Debt Service Funds-- Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related 
costs. 

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation 

Except for budgetary purposes, the basis of accounting used by the MunicipaHty conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GMP") as 
applicable to governmental units. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied 
to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a Habllfty Is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they 
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

The Municipality has elected not to apply all Statements and Interpretations issued by the 
Financial Accounting Standard Board after November 30, 1989, in accordance with GASS 
Statement No.20. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered 
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, 
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and 
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures when payment is due. 
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditure in governmental funds. 
Proceeds from issuance of general long-term debt reported as other financing sources. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, rent, and interest associated with the current 
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when the government receives cash. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issue prior to December 1, 
1989, generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that 
those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmentat Accounting 
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private·-sector 
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same 
limitation. The Municipality has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants, and contributions, and 3) 
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments, if any. Internally dedicated 
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they 
are needed. 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Assets, liabilities and net assets 

1. Cash, cash equivalents, and cash with fiscal agent- The Municipality's cash and cash 
equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. 

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt services fund represents special additional property 
tax collections retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the 
payment of the Municipality's debt service, as established by law. 

Cash with fiscal agent is shown in the Enterprise Fund which is held by the Government 
Development Bank and its use is limited to the expenditures associated with 
"Commercial Pavilion of Dorado Rafael Hernandez Colon" 

2. Receivables and payables- Activity between funds that are representative of 
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred 
to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund Joans) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non--current portion of interfund loans). All 
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other fl.Jnds." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, if any, are 
offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate 
that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial 
resources. 

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which 
are determined, based upon past collection experience and current economic 
conditions. Intergovernmental receivables in the general fund represent mostly 
contributions from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority {PREPA), which contribute 
As payment in lieu of taxes a twenty percent of its revenues after deductions of 
subsides granted, or an amount equal to the cost of electric power consumed by each 
Municipality, or an average of the contribution in lieu of taxes paid to each Municipality 
in the last five fiscal years whichever is greater. The contribution in lieu of tax revenue 
and related receivabte recorded in the General Fund for the current fiscal year was 
determined based on revenue estimates made by the PREPA and actual transactions 
during the current fiscal year, because the finat contribution amount from the PREPA 
was not available at the date of release of the basic financial statements. 
Intergovernmental receivable in the special revenue fund represent amounts owed to 
the Municipality for reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally 
funded programs. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF .PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

3. Inventories- Inventories in the general fund is recorded as expenditure and, 
consequently, the inventory is not recorded in the statement of net assets. 

4. Capltaf assets- Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure 
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the 
governmental activities column in the governmental-wide financial statements. The 
Municipality defines capital asset as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$25 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are reported at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital 
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. 

Capital assets of the Municipality are depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following estimated useful lives: 

Description 

Buildings and site improvements 
Infrastructure 
Works of art 
Vehicles 
Furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 

Useful life 

40years 
40years 
10years 
5years 
5 years 

3to 5 years 

Capltallzatlon threshold 

$1 
$1 
$1 
$1 

$25 
$25 

5. Long-term obligations- The liabilities reported in the government-wide financial 
statements include to general and special obligation bonds and notes, and other long­
term liabilities, such as vacation, sick leave, Utigation, long-term liabilities to other 
governmental entities. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances 
cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources, while bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual 
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures. 

6. Compensated absences- Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days 
per month up to a maximum of 60 days. Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully 
vested to the employees from the first day of work. All vacation pay it is accrued when 
incurred in the government-wide financial statements. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum of 
90 days. Upon retirement, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated and 
unpaid sick leave at the current rate, if the employee has at least 10 years of service 
with the Municipality. 

7. Claims and judgments- The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments1 

which is due on demand, such as from adjudicated or settled claims, is recorded in the 
general fund. 

8. Reservation of fund balanc• Reservations of fund balance in the fund financial 
statements, represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for specific 
future use or are not appropriated for expenditure. The Municipality has the following 
reservations of fund balance: 

a. Capital Projects- Represent the reservation of amounts to be used for future 
expenditures for capital projects under contacts and other commitments. These 
committed amounts generally will become liabilities in future periods as the 
projects are completed. 

b. Encumbrances- Represent future expenditures under purchase orders, contracts 
and otfler commitments. These committed amounts generally will become 
liabilities in future periods as the goods or services are received. 

c. Other Purposes- Represents net assets available for specific use and/or legally 
segregated for other specific future use. 

d. Debt Service Fund- Represents net assets available to finance future debt service 
payments. 

9. lnterfund and intra-entity transactions- The Municipality has the following types of 
transactions among funds: 

a. Operating Transfers- Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as 
uoperating transfer-in" by the recipient fund and as "Operating transfers-out" by the 
disbursing fund. 

b. Intra-Entity Transactions- Transfers between the funds of the primary government 
are reported as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as 
amounts due to and due from other funds. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPAUTY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCtAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

10.Risk financing- The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft, 
tort claims and other losses. Insurance policies are negotiated by the Puerto mco 
Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the Municipalities of Puerto 
Rico. 

Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from the gross property 
tax collections by the CRIM for the year ended June 30, 2004 amounted to 
approximately $285,606. The current insurance policies have not been cancelled or 
terminated. The CRIM also deducted approximately $378,330 for workers 
compensation insurance covering all municipal employees. 

11. Reconciliatlon of Government·Wlde and Fund Financial Statements 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance­
total governmental funds and net assets-governmental activities as reported in the 
gevernment-wide statement of net assets. The two elements of that reconciliation 
explains that "long term liabilities, including compensated absences, bonds and notes 
payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in 
the funds. ", and that "capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The details of this 
reconciliation are as follows: 

Net assets Invested in capital assets. net of related debt 

Capital .assets, net of depreciation 

Deduct 
Bonds Payable related to capital Assets 
Notes Payables related to capital Assets 
Lease Obligation - IBM 
Lease Obligation- Crossborder 

Net assets restricted tor capital prolects 

Fund balance restricted for capital projects 

Net assets restricted for debt sel'\lice 

Fund balance restricted for debt service 

Deduct: 
Interest Payable 

Net assets restricted for other oumoses 

Other governmental funds- fund balance restricted 
for other purposes 

$14,969,871 

(18,780,000) 
(1,150,000) 

(4,518) 
(185.052) 

4,627,930 

(435.971) 

Total Net Assets -
Governmental Activities 

$(5,149,699) 

8,875,039 

4,191,959 

414,015 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIACANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Net assets unrestricted <deficit) 

General fund - total fund balance: 
Md: 

Accrual basis Account Receivables 
Deduct: 

Bonds Payable related to Operational Debts 
Compensated absences debt 
Landfill Obligation 
Property tax debt - CRIM Law 42 
Property tax debt - CRIM Law 146 

Total net assets - governmental activities 

2. DEPOSITS 

$2,016,669 

458,983 

(805,000) 
(1,857 ,908) 
(2,37 4,168) 

(227;058) 
(611,6091 

<3.400;091) 

$4931 223 

Under Puerto Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banks must be fully 
coflateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depository insurance. All 
securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury of Puerto Rico. In 
addition, the Municipality maintains deposits with the Government Development Bank for 
Puerto Rico (GOB). 

The Municipality's bank balances in commercial banks of approximately $5,476,760, 
$351, 761 and $1,821,360 in the general fund, special revenue fund - other federal grants, 
and capjtal projects fund - local and state grants, respectively, were fully collateralized at 
June 30, 2004. In the other governmental funds there were deposits with commercial banks 
of approximately $ 664,533 that were fully collateralized. 

The deposits at GOB of approximately $7 ,898,501 that is restricted principally for capital 
projects in the capital project fund - local and state grant, $103,960 restricted for operational 
expenditures in the general fund, and the $4,524,007 in the debt service fund are unsecured 
and uncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried by governmental banks. 

3. RECEIVABLES 

A. Municipal License Tax- The Municipality impose a municipal license tax on all businesses 
that operate within the Municipality, which are not totally or partially exempt from the tax 
pursuant to the Industrial Incentives Acts of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rrco. This is a 
self-assessed tax based on the business volume in gross sales as shown in the tax return 
that is due on April 24 of each year. Entities with sales volume of $1,000,000 or more 
must include audited financial statements together with the tax return. During the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2004, the tax rates were as follows: 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

3. RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 

.1. Financial business-1.50% of gross revenues 

2. Other organizations- 0.50% of gross revenues 

This tax is due in two equal installments on July 1 and January 1 of each fiscal year. A 
discount of 5% is allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15. Municipal 
license tax receivable represents filed municipal license tax returns that were uncollected 
as of June 30, 2004, net of allowance for uncollectible. 

Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year are 
recorded as deferred revenues. 

B. Intergovernmental Receivables- Intergovernmental receivables in the general fund 
principally consist of the amounts due from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority 
("PREPA") resulting from the estimated revenues the Municipality is entitled to receive ·in 
lieu of payment of taxes, and the amounts due from the Municipal Revenue Collection 
Center ("CRIM") of the Commonwealth of Puerto Ri·co resulting from property tax 
collections related to the amnesty granted through the Public Law 7 4, enacted in Match 1, 
2004, The amounts receivable from governmental entities are as follows: 

Goyemmental Entity 

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority (MPREPA") 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center ("CRIM") 

Total 

Amount 

$107,357 
141.491 

$248848 

The contribution in lieu of tax receivable from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority 
reported above represent an estimated amount as described in the Note 1 (E) (2), because 
the final contribution amount from the PREPA for the fiscal year 2003-2004 was not 
available. Also, as described in Note 14, there is a formula to determine the contribution on 
lieu of taxes to be distributed to the municipalities. 

Intergovernmental receivable in debt service fund represents property tax receivable at 
June 20, 2004. Following is a detail of the intergovernmental receivable: 

Governmental Entity 

Municipal Revenue Collection Center ("CRIM") 

Total 

Amount 

$109.105 

$109.105 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

3. RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 

Intergovernmental receivable in capital project funds local and state grants represent 
funds assignments by state government to the municipality at year end. Following is a 
detail of the intergovernmental receivable: 

Program Pescrlotlon Amount 

Department of Treasury $101.700 

Total $101 .zoo 

Intergovernmental receivable in other governmental funds represent expenditures 
incurred not yet reimbursed by local and state government. Following is a detail of the 
intergovernmental receivable: 

Program Oescr[ptlon Amount 

Department of Labor $480.806 

Total $480806 

Intergovernmental receivable in special revenue fund - other federal grants represent 
expenditures incurred not yet reimbursed by federal government or the pass-through 
grantor. Following is a detail of the intergovernmental receivable: 

Program ~scrlotfon 

Community Service Block Grant 
Highway Planning an Construction 
Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program 
Nutrition Program for the Elderly 
Community Development Block Grants/ State's Program 
Special Programs for Aging - Title Ill 

Total 

4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Amount 

$ 15,015 
4,391 

53,158 
3,120 

288,450 
73.771 

$437.905 

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2004, and interfund transfers during the 
fiscal year ended at June 30, 2004, are summarized as follows: 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

a. Due from/to other fund: 

Receivable Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

Community 
Development Block 
Grants- Section 
108 Loan 
Guarantees 

Special Programs 
for Aging - Title Ill 

Total 

Payable Fund 

Debt Service Fund 

Special Revenue Fund­
Federal Grants-Community 
Service Block Grant 

Special Revenue Fund - Local 
Grants-law 52 Program 

Special Revenue Fund - Local 
Grants - Law 82 Program 

Special Revenue Fund - Other 
Federal Grants- Community 
Development Block Grant; 
State's Program 

Special Revenue Fund - other 
Federal Grants- Special 
Programs for Aging - Title 
Ill 

Special Revenue Fund - Other 
Federal Grants- Nutrition 
Program for the Elderly 

General Fund 

General Fund 

Puroose 

Interest Revenue 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Program Income Revenue 

Matching Contribution 

Amount 

$ 8,044 

14,956 

41,645 

557,480 

29,022 

3,500 

12,000 

9,785 

30.000 

$ZQ6,!1~2 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

4. INTERfUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

b. Transfer in/out to other fund 

Transter oyt Transter In Purpgse 

Transfer of funds for 
~nterprise Fund General Fund operating purposes 

Special Revenue Fund - Other 
General Fund Federal Gr~nts Matching Contribution 

Special Revenue Fund - Local 
General Fund and State Grants Creation of a New Fund 

General Fund Debt Service Fund Debt retirement 

Total 

Amount 

$310.000 

177,116 

21,879 

360.824 

$869819 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC ANANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time of 
acquisition by the Municipality and a cost of $25 or more, are primarily funded through the 
issuance of long~term bonds and loans. A summary of capital assets and changes occurring 
in 2004, including those changes pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, 
follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation: 

Bglance B~lance 
Gov~mmental ActMlies: Jutxi20Q3 Additions Betirements June 30, 2004 

as R~stated 

Capital asset, not being 
depreciated: 

Land $ 2,923,521 $ 1;038,754 $ - $ 3,962,275 
Construction in progress ;330,832 1,67Z.41~ (281,85~) J.,Z26,J9~ 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 3.2~4.~~3 2,71§,:129 (281.~~3} ~.688,6§9 

Capital assets, being deprec-iated: 

Buildings 8,064,917 8,064,917 
Buildings improvements 723,563 625,255 1,348,818 
Infrastructure 515,091 575,432 1,090,523 
Infrastructure improvements 206,170 206,170 
Equipment 1,664,910 457,832 (33,080} 2,089,662 
Furnishing 241,486 26,542 (17,749) 250,279 
Work of Arts 8,003 8,003 
Computers 228,352 19,827 (1,254) 246,925 
Vehicles 4,89Q,258 268,035 (10,211) 5.~.48.Q82 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 16,336,580 2,179,09~ (62,294} 18.453,379 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings (3,308,521) (201,622) (3,510,143) 
Buildings improvements (65,763) (27,557) (93,320) 
Infrastructure (4,280) (18,956) (23,236) 
Infrastructure improvements (4,216) (4,216) 
Equipment (1,198,784) (188,964) 32,501 (1,355,24 7) 
Furnishing (170,587) (25,169) 17,678 (178,078} 
Computers (132,859) (54,160) 1,194 (185,825} 
Work of Arts (6,670) (800) (7,470). 
Vehicles (3,240,193} (~84,660 10.211 (3,81.4,6~2) 

Total accumulated depreciation (8,12Z,657l (1.106,1Q4} (61,,584} (9,172,177} 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 8,208,923 l.OZ2,989 (Z;l.O} 9.281,202 

Governmental activities capital 
assets, net $ 111~63.2Z6 s 3.Z891158 s (28.2.563} $ 1~.969.8Z1 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 

Governmental actMtles: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
CUiture and recreation 
Urban Development 
Community Development 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 

$ 513,277 
178,760 
318,067 

74,261 
13,062 

8.677 

$1106104 

Balance 
Business - type Activities 

Capital asset, not being 
depreciated: 

Balance 
Julyi 2003 Additions Retirements June 30. 2004 

Land and Construction in 
Progress 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Building 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Building 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

Business Type Activities capital 
assets, net 

$ 388.790 $ 45.400 _$ ___ _ - $ 434,190 

388.790 45.400 434.190 

3.537.458 3.537,458 

3.537.458 3.537.458 

(611.685) (88,431) <700.122) 

(611,685} (88.437! (700.1221 

2.925.773 (88.437) 2.837.336 

$ 3.314.563 $ (43.037) ... $~~~~ i 3,211,526 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 

Business -Type Activities 

General government $ 88,437 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities $ 88 437 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

6. PROPERTY TAXES 

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by 
May 15 of each year with the CRIM, a governmental entity created by the government of 
Puerto Rico as part of the Municipal Governmental Autonomous Law of August 1991. Real 
property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of real estate and on each building. 

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for 
personal property and on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on 
personal property must be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real 
property may be paid in two installments by July 1 and January 1. The CRIM is responsible for 
the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf of all the 
municipalities of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs the 
Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collect for the ensuing 
fiscal year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on the 
initial estimated collections. The CRIM is required by law to prepare a settlement statement 
on a fiscal year basisr whereby a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the 
Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. This settlement has to be 
completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year-end, and a final 
settlement made not later than six months after year-end. If the CRIM remits to the 
Municipality property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable 
from the CRIM is recorded at June 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually 
collected by the CRIM, a payable to the CRIM is recorded at June 30 . 

On January 26, 2000, Public Law 42 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to obtain a loan 
up to $200,000,000, and for a term not to exceeding 10 years, to allow for the financing of 
the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final 
settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections through fiscal year ended June 
30, 2000. The amounts that the Municipalities will collect from additional property taxes 
resulting from increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to the 
Municipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy 
was the result of the Public Law 238, enacted on August 15, 1999. On October 11, 2001, 
Public Law 146 was enacted to amend Public Law 42, to extend the loan amortization period 
up to 30 years. 

Also, on October 11, 2002, Public Law 172 was enacted, to provide as an option for the 
Municipalities to include the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM 
arising from final settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2001 with the loan authorized through Public Law 42 enacted on 
January 26, 2000. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC ANANCJAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

6. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED) 

On June 26, 1997, Public Law 21 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to sell property tax 
receivables related to taxpayers who owned property taxes from 197 4 to 1996. The property 
tax receivables were purchased by Public Financing Corporation, a subsidiary of the 
Government Development Bank (GOB), with proceeds of a bonds issuance. This Law imposes 
to the CRIM the obligation to replace any uncollectible property tax receivable with any valid 
property tax receivables or equivalent in money. 

A high percentage of receivables were determined to be uncollectible receivables, and 
therefore, on October 11, 2001, Public Law 146 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to 
obtain a loan to pay in advance the bonds issued by the Public Financing Corporation (a GOB 
subsidiary), and any costs related to the transaction. Also, a term not to exceeding 30 years 
was authorized to the financing of the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with 
the CRIM arising from the sale of property tax receivables to the Public Financing Corporation 
(a GOB Subsidiary). 

The government wide statement of net assets includes an outstanding debt balance of 
$227 ,058 and $$611,609 related to Law 42 and Law 146 respectively. 

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property 
taxes on the first $ 15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the Puerto 
Rico Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities, except for 
property assessed at less than $ 3,500 for which no payment is made. As part of the 
Municipal Autonomous law of 1991, the exempt amount to be paid by the Puerto Rico 
Treasury department to the Municipalities was frozen as of January 1, 1992. In addition, the 
law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property taxes of up to$ 50,000 of 
the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than $ 150,000. 

The annual. tax rate is 8.83% for real property and 6.83% for personal property of which 1.03% 
of both tax rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 5.8% and 3.80%, respectively, 
represents the Municipality's basic property tax rate which is appropriated for basics and 
accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization 
fund together with .a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico electronic lottery and a 
subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a distribution is made to all 
municipalities; (b) 2.00% represents the ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and 
accounted for in the debt service fund. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

7. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES: 

The amounts due to other governmental entities in the General Fund include the following: 

Governmental Entity 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) - Property Taxes 
Retirement System Administration 
Internal Revenue Service 
Department of Treasury 
General Services Administration 
Department of Labor - Unemployment 
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 
Total 

8. DEFERRED REVENUES 

Amount 
$ 739,848 

91,675 
2,708 
2,010 
1,649 

18,688 
38.405 

$ 894.983 

A Municipal License Tax- The deferred revenues of approximately $3.083,636 in the general 
fund relates to municipal license tax collected in fiscal year 2003-04 that will be earned in 
fiscal year 2004-05. 

8 Federal Government- The deferred revenues presented in special revenue fund- other 
federal grants represents the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying 
expenditures have not been incurred. Deferred revenues from the federal government are 
as follows: 

Program Descrlotlon 

Emergency Management Pertormance Grants 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 

Section 108 Loan Guarantee 

Community Development Block Grants/State's 
Program 

Child Care and Development Block Grant 

others 

Total 

Amount 

$ 25,257 

27,256 

151,965 

54,543 

57,227 

12.006 

$328-.254 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - {CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

8. DEFERRED REVENUES {CONTINUED) 

The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds represent the portion of 
federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not been incurred. 
Deferred revenues from the federal government are as follows: 

Program Description 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 

Child and Adult Care Food Program 

Head Start 

Total 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Amount 

$135,179 

40,857 

1.267 

$177 303 

Long-term liabiJity activity for the year ended June 30, 2004, was as follows: 

B~g1no1og BQ[rQWl!]gs Paxm~nts2r ErnUng 
Qescrlotlon Balance or Additions Ded_uctlons Balance 

Bonds Payable $ 14,035,000 $ 6,685,750 $(1,135, 750) $ 19,585,000 

Notes Payable 1,870,750 370,000 (1,090,750) 1,150,000 

Lease Obligation-Cross 
Border 224,845 (39,793.) 185,052 

Lease Obligation-IBM 39,668 (35,150) 4,518 

Property Tax Debt- Law 42 
& Law 146 859,074 .(20,407) 838,667 

Compensated Absences 1,762,904 95.004 1,857,908 

Landfill obligation 3,270,010 (895,842) 2,374,168 

Puerto Rico Electric Power 
Authority 59,020 (59,020) 

Department of Labor 85.775 (85.775) 

Total i 22,1~8029 i Z 2Q9 ZZ5, ~(3-362.~BZl s 2~sa5,~1~ 

Dy~W!tblD 
One Year 

$1,370,000 

320,000 

52,754 

4,518 

20,407 

150,000 

1,010,648 

~ 2,928,32Z 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LlABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

.1. Legal debt margin- The Municipality is subject to a legal debt margin requirement, which is 
equal to 10% of the total assessment of prope.rty 1.ocated within the Municipality plus 
balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable to be repaid 
with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt service. In addition, before any new 
bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be sufficient to cover the 
projected debt service requirement. Long-term debt, except for the bonds and notes 
payable (excluding notes payable to the Land Authority), is paid with unrestricted funds. 

2. Bonds payable-- The Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds to provide 
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. During the current 
year the municipal legislature authorized a bond issuances for approximately $5,960,000 
Bonds payable outstanding at June 30, 2004 are as follows: 

MatYri~ Original Range of Balan'~ i:!l 
Type of bonds ~ Amount lntec§t Bs:!tes Jun~ 3Q, 200~ 
1986-Series 7-1-2006 500,000 8.00% $ 50,000 
1987-Series 7:.1-2006 810,000 9.00% 155,000 
1987-Series 7-1-2006 1,545,000 9.00% 295,000 
1992-Series 7-1-2007 $1,860,000 6.26% to 6.41% 755,000 
1993-Series 7-1-2008 150,000 7.21%to 7.61% 30,000 
1995.Series 7-1-2007 765,000 7.21% to 7.51% 310,000 
1996-Series 7-1-2014 2,750,000 5.80% to 6.58% 2,095,000 
1997-Series 7-1-2009 2,650,000 5.29% to 5. 78% 1.5451000 
1997-Series 7-1-2016 290,000 6.00% 215,000 

1997..Series 7-1-2016 110,000 6.00% 70,000 
1998..series 7-1-2013 3,675,000 5.29% to 6.11% 2,855,000 
1998-Sertes 7-1-2012 1,065,000 5.29% to 6.04% 775,000 
2000Series 7-1-2013 65,000 2.80% to 4.61% 50,000 
20()()..Series 7-1-2025 310,000 2.80%to 5.60% 295,000 
2000..Series 7-1-2020 1,500,000 2 .80% to 5.29% 1,390,000 
2002..Series 7-1-2026 2,850,000 2.80% to 5.60% 2,770,000 
2004..series 7-1-2028 550,000 5.00% to 6.00% 550,000 
2004-Series 7-1-2023 3,150,000 2.40% to 5.00% 3,150,000 
2004..series 7-1-2023 115,000 5.00% to 6.00% 115,000 
2004-Serles 7-1-2023 1,860,000 2.36% to 5.00% 1,860,000 
2004-Series 7-1-2010 285,000 5.00% to 6.00% 2~5.000 

Total general obligatlon bonds S;J.~.~85,QQQ 

These bonds, except the 1986 Series bonds amounting to $500,000, the 1997 Series 
bonds for $110,000 and $290,000, the 1987 Series bonds for $1,545,000 and 
$810,000 and the 2004 Series bonds amounting to $285,000, are payable from the ad 
valorem property tax of 2.00% which is restricted for debt service and retained by the 
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes. 

41 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows: 

Y~iuEndlag 
June 30. Principal lnt~rest 

2005 $ 1,370,000 $ 914,384 
2006 1.495.000 960.108 
2007 1,335,000 877,115 
;2008 1.425,000 799,498 
2009 1,210,000 725,160 
2010-2014 5,665,000 2,645,530 
2015-2019 3,005,000 1,450,688 
2020-2024 3,150,000 673,365 
2025-2029 930,000 92,070 
2030-2034 

Total s 19~8~.QQQ i ~.131.~1~ 

3. Notes Payable- Th.e proceeds of the issuance of notes payables were used prlnclpally to 
pay debt incurred in prior years and to cover the expenditures of a special event. During 
the current year the municipal legislature authorized a notes issuances for approximately 
$370,000 The notes are payable as follows: 

Type of notes 
2000-Series 
2001-Series 
2002-Series 
2004-Series 

Total notes payable 

Maturity 
~ 

7-1-2005 
7-1-2005 
7-1-2006 
7-1~2010 

Orll!inal 
Amount 

230,000 
235,000 
885,000 
370,000 

Range of 
lntere5t rates 

2.80% to 2.89% 
2.80% to 2.89% 
2.80% to 3.21% 
5.00% to 6.00% 

Balance at 
June 30. 2004 

$ 105,000 
105,000 
570,000 
370.000 

$1.150000 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30. 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010-2014 
Total 

Principal 

$ 320,000 
345,000 
255,000 

50,000 
55,000 

125.000 
$1.150.QOO 

Interest 

$ 36,475 
29,066 
18,590 
12,300 

9,150 
7.650 

$113 231 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

4. Lease Obligations- The Municipality has entered into a lease agreement as lessee for 
financing the acquisition of a 2002 Ford Winnebago to be used as an electronic library. 
This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, 
has been recorded at the present value of fts future minimum lease payments as of the 
inception date. 

The assets acquired through the capital lease are as follows: 

2002 Ford Winnebago 
Less: 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Net value 

Governmental 
Actlvltes 

$231.845 

(81.146) 

$150.699 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease 
payments as of June 30, .2004, were as follows: 

Year ending 
June 30. 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

Total minimum lease payrnents 
Less amount representing interest 

Present value of minimum lease payments 

Governmental 
Actfyltes 

$ 52,754 
52,754 
52,754 
52.7.54 

211,016 
(25.964) 

$185.052 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

During the fiscal year June 30, 1999 the Municipality acquired computer equipment under 
a capital lease. The capital lease to IBM Credit Corp. is payable in monthly installments of 
$4,546 which includes interests at 7.48% through June 30, 2004. Total principal 
payments during the current year amounted to $35,150. 

The assets acquired through the capital lease are as follows: 

1999 Ford Winnebago 
Less: 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Net value 

Governmental 
Activftes 

$ 227.000 

(227.QQQl 

$ 

The outstanding debt balance as of June 30, 2004 amounts to $4,518. The debt service 
requirements to maturity including $28 of interest are as follows: 

Year ending 
June 30. 
2005 

Goyemmental 
Actlvites 
$4546 

5. Property Tax Debt- These amounts represent the balance owned to the Municipal Revenue 
Collection Center (CRIM) at June 30, 2004, as described in Note 6. 

6. Compensated absences- The government-wide statement of net assets includes 
approximately $1,081,265 of accrued sick leave benefits, and approximately $776,643 of 
accrued vacation benefits, representing the Municipality's commitment to fund such costs 
from future operations. 

7. Landfill obligation-State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to place 
a final cover on its landfill site when closed and perform certain maintenance and 
monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. In accordance with 
Statement No. 18 of the GASB, ~Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Cfosure and 
Post Closure Care Costs", the Municipality has performed a study of the activities that 
need to be implemented at the Municipality's landfill to comply with applicable state and 
federal regulations. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

As of June 30, 2004 the Municipality entered in an agreement with a contractor to complete 
the final cover of the landfill for a total cost of $873,569 and additional inspection, 
monitoring, and supervision costs amounting to $90,079 for a total costs of $963i648. The 
annual estimate of closure costs presented in the prior year financial statement was restated 
as a result of the decrease in final cover costs. Based on this, the Municipality has recognized 
$963,648 as the Municipality's estimated current cost for landfill closure as of June 30, 
2004. The preliminary annual estimate of post closure costs has been assessed 
approximately to be $1,410,520 for a period of approximately 30 years. Actual costs may be 
different due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in laws and regulations. As of 
June 30, 2004, the Municipality's landfill facilities have been closed. The balance of closure 
and post-closure costs of $963,648 and $1,410,520, respectively, ar:e reported in the 
government-wide statement of net assets. 

8. Operating leases-The Municipality Is obligated under certain leases accounted for as 
operating leases. Operating leases do not give rise to property rights or lease obligations, 
and therefore the results of the lease agreements are not reflected in the Municipality's 
financial statements. 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental payments under operating 
leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of 
June 30, 2004: 

Year Ending 
June 30. 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
Total minimum payments 
required 

9. Revenue Bonds-Enterprise Funds 

Governmental 
Actlvltes 

$ 75,820 
64,858 
16,234 

8 ,218 
8.218 

.$173,348 

In 1994, the Municipality issued $2,090,000 revenue bonds, in which the Municipality 
pledges rent income from the enterprise fund ( completed construction by July 1996 of 
the "Commercial Pavilion Rafael Hernandez Colon") to pay such debt. On January 18, 
2000 the Municipality formalizes a revenue bond payable with Banco Santander Puerto 
Rico. This loan was used to refinance the outstanding loan with Governmental 
Development Bank at 9.00%. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

The note will be paid by semi-yearly installments of $103,280, which includes interest at 
7.25% for the first ten years. After the first ten years, the Municipality can exercise the 
option to fully repay the outstanding balance of $943,238 or refinance the debt at an 
interest rate determined by the lesser of 9.50% or 1.00% over the London Interbank 
Offered Rate (L.l.B.O.R.) +1%}. Total principal payments during the current year amounted 
to $87,018. The outstanding debt balance as of June 30, 2004 amounts to $1,547,789. 
The debt service requirements to maturity including $540,714 of interest are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30. 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
Thereafter 
Total 

;LO. PENSION PLAN 

Prlncloal 

$96,733 
103,874 
111,541 
119,774 
128,615 
987.252 

$1.547.789 

Interest 

$109,827 
102,686 
95,019 
86,786 
77,945 
68.45.1 

$540.714 

The Employee's Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its Instrumentalities (the 
Retirement System) is a cost-sharing multiple defined benefit pension plan sponsored by, and 
reported as a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. All regular employees of 
the Municipality under 55 years of age at the date of employment become members of the 
Retirement System as a condition to their employment. 

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to 
legislation enacted by the Commonwealth's legislature. Disability retirement benefits are 
available to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Retirement benefits 
depend upon age at retirement and the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest 
after ten years of plan participation. 

Members who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of 
creditable service or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten 
years of creditable service are entitled to an annual benefit payable monthly for fife. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

10 PENSION PLAN ( CONTINUED) 

The amount of the annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation, as 
defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus two 
percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of 
creditable service in excess of 20 years. In no case will the annuity be less than $200 per 
month. 

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive 
the Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will recei.ve 65 percent 
of the average compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the 
average compensation, as defined. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a 
refund of his/her accumulated contributions. 

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5. 775% for the first $550 of their 
monthly gross salary and 8.275% for the excess over $ 550 of monthly gross salary. The 
Municipality is required by the same statute to contribute 9.275% of the participant's gross 
salary. Total employee and employer contributions during the year ended June 30, 2004 
amounted to approximately $427,249 and $478,880, respectively. 

On September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act. No. 44 7 of May 15, 1951, which created the 
Retirement System, was enacted with the purpose of establishing a new pension program 
(System 2000). Employee's participation in the current system as of December 31, 1999, 
may elect to stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to the new program. Persons joining 
the Municipality on or after January 1, 2000, will only be allowed to become members of 
System 2000. System 2000 will reduce the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those 
employees who joined the current plan on or after Apr.ii 1, 1990. 

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under 
this new plan, there will be a pool of pensi·on assets, which will be invested by ERS together 
with those of the current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico will not 
guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity will be based on a formula which assumes 
that each year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of 8.275% to the employee's 
salary up to a maximum of 10%) will be invested in an account which will either: (1) earn a 
fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury Note or, (2) earn a rate equal to 
75% of the return of the ERS's investment portfolio {net of management fees), or (3) earn a 
combination of both alternatives. Participants will receive periodic account statements similar 
to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability pensions will 
not be granted under System 2000. The employer's contribution (9.275% of the employee's 
salary) will be used to fund the current plan. 

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the 
year ended June 30, 2004, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement System, 
Minillas Station, P.O. Box 42003, San Juan, PR 00940-2003. 
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COMl\'IONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Finance Department is responsible of assuring that the Municipality's property is properly 
insured. Annually, the Finance Department Division compiles the information of all property 
owned and its respective market value. After evaluating this information, the Finance 
Department Division submits the data regarding the Municipality's properties to the Public 
Insurance Department at the Department of the Treasury of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
who is responsible for purchasing all property and casualty insurance policies of all 
municipalities. 

12. CONTINGENCIES 

The Municipality is a defendant in a number of lawsuits arising principally from the ordinary 
course of the Municipality's activities. It .is the opinion of the Municipality's management and 
the Municipality's attorney that any losses not covered by insurance which may ultimately be 
incurred as a result of the suits and claims will not be material. As a result, the accompanying 
general-purpose financial statements do not include adjustments, if any, that could resu'lt 
from the resolution of these legal proceedings. 

13.BEGINNING FUND BALANCES AND NET ASSETS RESTATEMENT: 

The beginning Fund Balance for General Fund has been restated by approximately $30,456 to 
properly presents the previously reported fund balance at June 30, 2003. The restatement is 
mainly due to the reclassification of cash balance from the General Fund to the Capital 
Projects Fund, to recognize a Debt Service Fund interest receivable, reclassification of cash 
balance from special revenue fund-federal grant related to reimbursements of costs financed 
by the General Fund, and due to a condoned Treasury Department interest and penalties debt 
as of June 30, 2003. 

The beginning Fund Balance for Debt Service Fund has been restated by approximately 
$1,080,607 to properly presents the previously reported fund balances at June 30, 2003. 
The restatement is mainly due to the recognition of the amount due from CRIM related to the 
Final Liquidation of the fiscal year 2002-2003. 

The beginning Fund Balance for Capital Projects Fund has been restated by $140,892 to 
properly presents the previously reported fund balances at June 30, 2003. The restatement is 
mainly due to the reclassification of cash balance from the General Fund to the Capital 
Projects Fund. 

The beginning Fund Balance for the Special Revenue Fund-State and Local grants in the Other 
Governmental Funds section has been restated by approximately $5,139 to properly present 
the previously reported fund balance at June 30, 2003. The restatement is mainly due to the 
reclassification of cash balance to Special Revenue Fund- Other Federal Grants and to the 
General Fund. 

48 



t 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

13.BEGJNNING FUND BALANCES AND NET ASSETS RESTATEMENT (CONTINUED): 

The beginning Net Assets for Governmental Activities has been restated by approximately 
$585,148 to properly present the previously reported Net Assets at June 30, 2003. The 
restatement is mainly due to the decrease in landfill closing and post closing obligation 
resulting from the final cover process, to recognize interest payable of long term debts and to 
adjust capital assets beginning balance. 

14.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On August 27, 2004, the Municipality of Dorado authorized the issuance of a general 
obligation bond for the amount of $50,000, for Housing Rehabilitation. Repayment of the 
bond is scheduled from July 2005 through July 2014. 

On August 2.7, 2004, the Municipality of Dorado authorized the issuance of a general 
obligation bond for the amount of $945,000, for Housing Rehabilitation. Repayment of the 
bond is scheduled from July 2005 through July 2019. 

On September 7, 2004, Public Law 255 was enacted to amend Section 22 of the Public Law 
83 of May 2, 1941, know as the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority {"PREPA") Act. This Law 
stipule a new formula to determine the contribution in lieu of taxes to be distributed to the 
Municipalitl es of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From fiscal year 2002-2003 the PREPA is 
required by law to distribute as contribution In lieu of taxes a twenty percent of its net 
revenues, after deduction of subsides granted, or an amount equal to the actual cost of 
electric power consumed by each Municipality, or an average of the contribution in lieu of 
taxes paid to each Municipality in the last five fiscal years, whichever is greater. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 
(SEE NOTES TO BUDGETARYCOMPARISON SCt-IEDULE) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Variance with 
Actual Amounts Anal Budget 

Bugg~~ am12uot5 (Budgetary Basis) Positive 
Orlglnal Anal (See Note 1) (Negative) 

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING' SOURCES: 
I Property taxes $ 7,354,719 $ 9,042.013 $ 8 ,900,632 $ (1.41.381) 

Munlc1pal license tax 3.194,485 3,194.485 a.580.716 386.231 
Licenses, permits and other local taxes 1,520,000 1,520,000 2,161.314 641,314 
Charges for service 13,800 13,800 17.503 3,703 
Intergovernmental 1.215,685 1.215,685 1.912,885 697,200 
Rent of property 275,316 275,316 270,805 (4,511) 
Fjnes and forfeitures 10,000 10,000 2.205 (7,795) 
Interest 550,000 550,000 lBS,830 (361,170) 
Miscellaneous 1.500,000 1,525,580 164,155 (1.361.425) 
Tran-sfer In from other fund 310,000 310,000 
Budgeted Carryover 400.000 400000 

Total revenues other financing sources and budget 15.634QQ5 1S.Q5§SZ9 1Z.9Q9,QA5' CliZ.SJ~l 
carryover 

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES: 

Current 
General ·government 7.733,603 9.81.7,292 9.725,964 91.328 
Public safety 1.479,898 1.290.686 1.270,741 19,945 
Public works 5,279,676 5,877,762 5,886,039 (8,277) 
Culture and recreation 583,960 553,353 550.039 3,314 
Operating transfer to other fund 556,868 51Z 186 559,819 142 Q33} 

Total expenditures, encumbrances and other financing 15,§34.,QQ5 18,056819 lZ.9~2.602 ~-2ZZ 
uses 

EXCESS (DEACIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENOlnJRES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTHER 
A NANCI NG SOURCES (USES) s s s !~55Zl $ iaa~:m 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO R·ICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED) 
AND NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Explanation of Differences: 

Sources/Inflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis)"avallable for approprlation" from the budgetary comparison schedule 
Differences-budget to GMP: 
Interest Receivable collected during 2004-2005 
Construction Excise Tax Recervable collected during 2004-2005 
Municipal Ucense Tax receivable collected during 2004-2005 
Rent Receivable collected dunng 2004-2005 
CRIM receivables collected during 2004-2005 and readjusted in 2004-2005 budget 
Transfer in frorn other fund 
Budgeted canyo11et 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues. expenditures, and changes In fund balances 

Uses/outflows of resources: 

Actual amounts (budgetary basis)"total charges to appropriations• from the budgetary comparison schedule 

Differences-budget to GAAP: 

Adjustment to ExpenditUres-Operational loans 
Prior year encumbrances recorded as current year expenditures for GAAP basis 
Current year encumbrances recorded as expenditures for budgetary purposes 
Operating transfer to other fund 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures. and changes 1.n fund balances 

.1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary Control 

$ 17,909,045 

5,533 
28,302 

7,045 
31,070 

141.491 
(310,000) 
1400,0001 

$17412486 

$ 17,992,602 

53,773 
119.004 

(563,011) 
!?59.8191 

s 17042549 

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. 
which is not in accordance with GAAP, and represents departmental appropriations 
recommended by the Mayor and approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the 
beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the 
Municipal Legislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as Mayor's 
Resolutions, do not require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. 

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fund. 

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e., 
purchase orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For GMP 
reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations 
of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the 
commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse 
at the end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project 
appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has 
authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made 
available for current spending. 

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is 
the budget ordinance at June 30, 2004 representing the original budget. There were no 
supplemental appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2004. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALilY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Federal Grantor/Pass-through 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE: 

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico Department of Education: 

Federal 
CFOA 

Number 

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 

Pass through the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico Governor's Office for Elderly Food 
Distribution (OGAVE): 

Nutrition Program for the Elderly 10.570 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN 
DEVELOPMENT: 

Direct Program: 
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 14.871 
Program 

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico Office of the Commissioner of 
Municipal Affairs: 

Community Development Block Grant -
State Program 

Community Development Block Grant -

14.228 

Section 108 Loan Guarantees 14.248 

Pass-trough the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico Municipality of San Juan: 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with 
AIDS (HOPWA) 14.241 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development 

Pass-through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

Not Available 

Not Available 

94-FD-22 
95-FD-22 
01-FD-22 
02-FC-22 
02-AB-22 
03-AB22 
03-FC-22 

Not Available 

Not Available 

Expenditures 

$166,173 

53,081 

219,254 

1,697,179 

803,124 

99,200 

30,198 

$ 2,629,701 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Federal Grantor/Pass-through 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 

U.S DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE: 

Pass-through the Puerto Rico Department of 
Justice: 

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 

Total U.S. Department of Justice 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 
Pass-through the PR Highway 
Administration: 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

16.592 

Federal Transit Administration- Capital 20.500 
Investment Grants 

U.S.DEPARTMENT 
SECURITY: 

OF HOMELAND 

Hazard Mitigation Grant 83.548 

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico Emergency Management Agency: 

Emergency Management Performance 
Grant 83.552 

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

Pass-through 
Entity 

Identifying 
Number 

Expenditures 

65,604 

65,604 

268,199 

268,199 

3,727 

356 

4,083 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPAUTY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS- (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Federal Grantor/Pass-through 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES: 

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico Governor's Office (OGAVE) (Cluster of 
Programs) 

Special Programs for Aging - Title Ill, Part 
8 - Grant for Supportive Services and 
Senior Centers 
Special Programs for Aging - Title Ill, Part 
C - Nutrition Services 

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico Administration for Children and 
Families (ADFAN}: 

Child Care and Development Block Grant 

Community Service Block Grant 

Head Start Program 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL 
AWARDS 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

93.044 

93.045 

93.575 

93.569 

93.600 

Pass-through 
Entity 

Identifying 
Number 

Not Available 

Not Available 

Not Available 

Not Available 

02..CH-0483~37 

02..CH-0483-38 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule 

Expenditures 

38,662 

73,158 

5,835 

14,698 

2,432,047 

2,564,400 

$ 5,751,241 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPAlllY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30_, 2004 

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION: 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant 
activity of the Municipality of Dorado and is presented on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. The basis of accounting is the same used to prepare the fund financial 
statements. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. 

2. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS: 

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule are included in the Special: Revenue 
Fund- Other Federal grants and Other Governmental Funds in the Municipality's fund 
financial statements. The reconciliation between the expenditures in the fund financial 
statements and the expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is as 
follows: 

Description 

Per Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards 

Non federal programs 
Expenditures 

Total expenditures in the 
fund financial statements 

Special 
Revenue Fund 
Other Federal 

Grants 

1,455,842 

69,409 

1,525,251 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

4,295,399 

1,295,993 

5,591,392 

Total 

5,751,241 

1,365,402 

7,116,643 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE ANO ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and the Municipal Legislature 
Municipallty of Dorado 
Dorado, Puerto Rico 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Municipallty of Dorado as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated December 6, 2004, 
which was unqualified. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality of Dorado's basic 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of Its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of basic financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Municipality of Dorado's internal 
control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements and not to provide assurance on 
the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted a matter involving the internal 
control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect Municipallty of 
Dorado's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the 
assertions of management in the basic financial statements. The reportable conditions are 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs items 04-01 
through 04-03. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) 

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the 
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that 
misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the basic financial statements 
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control 
over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that 
might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose reportable 
conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe the 
reportable conditions described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs are not material weaknesses. We also noted other matters involving the internal control 
over financial reporting, which we have reported to management of the Municipality of Dorado 
in a separate letter dated December 6, 2004. 

This report is intended for the information of the management and federal awarding agencies 
and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution 
is not limited. 

San Juan, Puerto Rico 
December 6, 2004 

Stamp No. 2019425 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of this report. 

11 1 J.ll*fl Ltipez-Vega,CP A,PSC 
Cnl1 licd r11hl1c 1\C~Ollnl3nt~ I tvfaMtrtntl!lll /\dVl .-Or.> 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Member of 

·American 1nslllutr. ol 
Certified Public AccounlMlr. 

• Pui:rto Rico Soc:iely al 
Certi tied Public Accou11t.l11!.5 

ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB-CIRCUU\R A-133 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Dorado 
Dorado, Puerto Rico 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the Municipality of Dorado with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30,2004. The Municipality of Dorado's major federal programs are identified in 
the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Municipality 
of Dorado:s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Municipality of 
Dorado's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and OMB A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federa l program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the Municipality of Dorado's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination 
on the Municipality of Dorado's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the Municipality of Dorado complied, in all material respects, with the 
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2004. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed 
instances of noncompliance with those requirements that are required to be reported in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs as items, 04-04 through 04-05 and 04-07 through 04-12 
and 04-14 through 04-18. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMS.CIRCULAR A-133 

(Continued) 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
The management of the Municipality of Dorado is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, 
contacts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we 
considered the Municipality of Dorado's internal control over compliance with requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine 
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMS Circular A-133. 

We noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that 
we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our 
attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control 
over compliance that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Municipality of Dorado's 
ability to administer a major federal program in accordance with applicable requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants. Reportable conditions are described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 04-04 through 04-18. 

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the 
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that 
noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations; contracts and grants that 
would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be 
detected within a timely period by employees on the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not 
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weakness. 
However, of the reportable conditions described above, we consider items 04-07 through 04-
12, 04-14, and 04-17 through 04-18 to be material weaknesses. We also noted other matters 
involving the internal control over compliance and certain immaterial instance of 
noncompliance, which we have reported to management of the Municipality of Dorado in a 
separate letter dated March 1, 2005. 

11 IMl Ltlpez-Vega,Cl'A,l'SC 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMS.CIRCULAR AM 
133(CONTINUED) 

This report is intended for the information of the management and federal awarding agencies 
and passMthrough entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution 
is not limited. 

/~4.t~eL-L~~A,CPA, PSC 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 
March 1, 2005 

Stamp No. 2019426 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of th is report. 

! 11JJJ4 I L6pez-Vega,CPA,PSC 
Certiflcd Pltbllc Accountant..,/ Management Advisors 
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COMMONWEALTH Of PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness identified? Yes X 
Reportable conditions identified not considered to 
be material weaknesses? Yes X 

Noncompliance material to financial statements Yes 
noted? 

Federal awards 

Internal Control over major programs: 
Material weakness identified? Yes X 
Reportable conditions identified not considered to 
be material weaknesses? Yes X 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance 
for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with Circular 
A-133, Section .510(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

Unqualified 

Yes X 

No 

None reported 

No X 

No 

None reported 

No 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
14.228 

14.871 
93.600 

Community Development Block Grant-State 
Program 
Section 8 Housing Choice Program 
Head Start Program 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs $ 300,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes No X 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

Finding Reference 04-01 

Requirement Financial Reporting - Accounting Records 

Statement of Condition During our examination of the Municipality's accounting system we noted 
that it does not summarize the transactions in a formal General Ledger 
in order to properly record and account for the transactions of all of its 
Governmental Funds (local, State and Federal Funds). 

Criteria Article 8.010 of State Act Number 81 of August 30, 1991 states that the 
Municipality should maintain an effective and updated accountjng 
system. 

Cause of Condition The Municipality did not establish effective internal control over the 
transactions recorded on its accounting records. Also, the accounting 
data is not summarized in the form of a double-entry general ledger 
record. 

Effect of Condition The Municipality accounting system did not provide updated and 
complete financial information that present the financial position and 
the result of operations and the change in fund balances. Such 
information is necessary to take management decisions. 

Recommendation We recommend that the Municipality should establish internal control 
procedures in order to maintain an accounting system that contains 
information pertaining to authorizations, obligations, unobligated 
balances, assets, liabilities, outlays or expenditures, interfund 
transactions, etc. 

Questioned Costs None 

Management Response 
And Corrective Action To correct the situation, the Municipality contracted a company to 

implement OCAM accounting system and to offers adequate training to 
the staff. 

Implementation date: 5/1/04. 

Responsible Person: Mr. Luis R. Sierra Salgado 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section II - Financial Statements findings 

Finding Reference 04-02 

Requirement cash Receipts- Revenues (Excise Taxes and Municipal License Tax), 
Receivables and Collections 

Statement of Condition We performed a cash receipt test and examined a sample of twenty five 
(25) cash collections. We found that no adequate monitoring procedures 
exist to assure the proper correctness and reconciliation of daily 
collection reports. The following summarize the exceptions found: 

a. The "Collections Reconciliation Report" of March 31, 2004 duly 
revised and approved by the Official Treasurer was not available for 
examination. 

b. The Official Treasurer did not documented adequately in the 
"Collections Reconciliation Report" of March 31, 2004, April 7, 2004, 
April 15, 2004, April 16, 2004 and April 23, 2004 the differences 
between the daily deposits with the amounts collected and not 
deposited the same day collected. 

c. In March 31, 2004 the Municipality collected $1,400 which belongs 
to HUD Section 108 account. We noted that $20 of those collections 
were deposited in the Municipality general account instead the HUD 
Section 108 account. 

d. In April 7, 2004 a bank deposit of $261.82 was made after twenty 
four days of been collected. 

e. In April 14, 2004 we found collections receipts amounting to $373.16 
which did not agree with the amounts deposited and credited in the 
bank. That situation occurred due to the receipt 31882, related to an 
ATH payment realized in April 15, 2004, was accounted twice by the 
Official Treasurer, with the receipt 115335 in April 14, 2004 and the 
Receipt 11534 7 in April 15, 2004. 

f. In April 16, 2004 we did not obtain evidence supporting that cash 
collections amounting to $10 were deposited in the bank. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

Finding Reference 04-02 (Continued) 

g. A deposit slip which belongs to April 16, 2004 amounting to 
$21,685.90 was not available for examination. 

h. In April 20, 2004 the Official Treasurer did not issue an Official 
Receipt for the collections realized by an "Auxiliar Treasurer" 
amounting to $68,118.28. 

i. In April 20, 2004 the "Auxiliar Treasurer" Receipt 31948 was issued 
by $160.65 in change the Municipality collected $152.62 by check. 

j . In April 20, 2004 the Municipality collected $1,275 which belongs to 
HUD Section 108 account. We noted that $600 of those collections 
were deposited in the Municipality general accovnt instead the HUD 
Section 108 account. 

k. The "Collections Reconciliation Report" duly revised and approved by 
the Official Treasurer which belongs to April 20, 2004, April 23, 2004, 
April 28, 2004, May 3, 2004 and May 25, 2004 were not issued the 
same day of the collections. Those reports were issued on May 20, 
2004, May 21, 2004 and May 25, 2004, respectively. 

I. In April 21, 2004 the Municipality collected $214.14 by check which 
was not deposited until April 23, 2004. 

m.ln April 22, 2004 the Municipality deposited $463.64, and the 
Treasurer receipt for the collection was not issued the same day. The 
receipt was issued on April 23, 2004. 

n. The deposits slips which belong to April 28, 2004 were not available 
for examination. In addition, the Municipality deposited $106 
collected with receipt 31481 which belong to Head Start Program in 
the Municipal general account. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

Finding Reference 

Criteria 

cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

04-02 {Continued) 

o. In May 3, 2004 we found $648.96 deposited in bank exceeding the 
collection receipts issued. We couldn't determine were the difference 
arose from. 

p. In May 20, 2004 the "Collections Reconciliation Report" did not 
accounted the receipt 31578 amounting to $27,400. 

q. The Municipality Computed excise tax for a construction project using 
a tax rate of 3% instead 5% as established by ordinance. That result in 
an underpayment by the contractor by $26,609. 

The Section Four (4) of the Chapter Three (3) of the Revised Regulation 
on Basic Standards for Municipalities of Puerto Rico establishes that the 
Official Treasurer should realize a daily revision of amount collected and 
amounts credited in bank to assure that the revenues has been duly 
accounted and processed in the period of collection. 

Internal controls failed to assure that daily collections were duly 
accounted for and deposited in a reasonable time and to assure that 
taxpayer excise tax payments are duly computed. The Official Treasurer 
did not maintain adequate monitoring procedures to assure the proper 
reconciliation of daily reports with the collections realized each day. 

The Municipality did not comply in these cases with regulations stated in 
the Section Four (4) of the Chapter Three (3) of the Revised Regulations 
on Basic Standards for the Municipalities of Puerto Rico. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS ANO QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

Finding Reference 

Recommendation 

04-02 (Continued} 

The Municipality should establish the following procedures in order to 
avoid these situations in a future: 

a. Strengthen the filling procedures in order to assure that collection 
supporting documents as deposit slips, treasurer receipts and other 
required documents are duly organizeo and filled. 

b. Strengthen the control procedures of the daily revision of the amounts 
collected and amount credited in bank to assure that the revenues 
are duly accounted and processed in the petiod of collection. 

Questioned Costs None 

Management Response 
And Corrective Action We changed the personnel in charge of the Treasury Department. 

Adequate internal controls were established to assure that internal 
control works effectively. 

Implementation date: Corrective action taken immediately. 

Responsible Person: Mr. Luis R. Sierra Salgado - Finance Director 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

Finding Reference 04-03 

Requirement Expenditures for Goods and Services and Accounts Payabl~ 
Purchasing and receiving 

statementofCondition We performed a cash disbursement test and examined thirty (30) 
disbursement vouchers which belonged to Head Start Program, thirty 
(30) disbursement vouchers belonged to SBGP Program, and twelve (12) 
disbursement vouchers belonged to Section 8 Voucher program. The 
following will summarize the exceptions noted: 

a. The original disbursement vouchers 400382, 400682 and 4002727 
of Head Start Program amounting to $5,070.70 related to the 
acquisition of goods or service and rent payments were not available 
for examination. We examined the copy of the disbursement voucher 
4002727 and 400682 maintained in the Head Start program office. 

b. The Municipality signed a contract with a supplier and paid $5,082.40 
with the disbursement voucher 4001269 for the acquisition of 
cleaning products for the Head Start Program. The program staff 
documented in the disbursement voucher that the supplier was the 
only one who offer the exclusive trademark of "Mightly Sparkle Toilet 
Bowl Cleaner, Mightly Sparkle Disinfectant and "Mlghtly Sparkle 
Essence Lotion Skin Cleanern. The Municipality did not obtain 
quotations from other companies in order to promote adequate 
competence for the acquisition of Bow·1, Cleaner, Disinfectants and 
Skin Cleaner. We consider that these products are not exclusive. 
These products can be obtained from different suppliers. 

c. The Municipality did not obtain quotations to promote adequate 
competence for t he acquisition of dental materials for the Head Start 
Program. The program staff documented in the disbursement voucher 
4003656 for $2,380.05 that the supplier is the only one who offer 
the exclusive line of dental paste of the trademark Oral-B available in 
different flavors including toothpaste with the pictures of Mickey 
Mouse, Buzz Light year etc. In addition, the toothbrush for children's 
from two to twenty four months of age. We consider that toothpaste 
and toothbrush are not exclusives. These products can be obtained 
from different suppliers. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

Finding Reference 

Criteria 

04-03 (Continued) 

d. The Municipality acquired catering services from a supplier for 
different activities of the Head Start Program. For each activity the 
program staff states in the purchase orders the total persons which 
will participate on the activities. The supplier invoiced the Municipality 
for the total persons detailed in the purchase order. Nevertheless, not 
all persons assisted to the activities. As result the Municipality paid to 
the supplier approximately $809 for breakfast and lunch not 
consumed. 

e. We did not obtain documental evidence of a newspaper 
announcement or proposal re.quest to different consultants in order to 
promote adequate competence for the acquisition of mental and 
health services for the Head Start employees. 

f . The cancelled checks 2807 4, 28089 and 304 79 amounting to 
$1,07 4.15, $256.80 and $350 respectively, which belong to Section 
8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, were not available for 
examination. 

g. The Disbursement vouchers 4000122 and 4000297 amounting to 
$1,07 4.15 and $256.80 respectively which belong to Section 8 
Housing Choice Voucher Program were not available for examination. 

The Revised Regulations on Basic Standards for the Municipalities of 
Puerto Rico establish in the Chapter Four (4) that the Finance Director 
will be responsible to account and prepare disbursements through 
documents duly prepared and certified, including sufficient evidential 
matter to support the transactions. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

Finding Reference 04-03 (Continued) 

The Revised Regulations on Basic Standards for the Municipalities of 
Puerto Rico establish in the Chapter Eight (8) Part II, Section Ill and Part 
Ill, Section I the procurement process for the acquisition of goods or 
services. The Chapter Eight (8) Part IV, Section IV states the informal bid 
procedures to be followed by the Municipalities of Puerto Rico. 

The 24CFR, Part 85.36, Uniform Administrative Requirement for Grants 
and Cooperative Agreements to State, Local and Federally Indian Tribal 
Governments, States that the Municipality must promote adequate 
competence for the acquisition of professional services with federal 
funds. 

Cause of Condition The Municipality internal control failed to assure that all transactions 
realized by the Municipality are supported by all the required 
documentation and comply with procurement process required by Laws 
and Regulations. 

Effect of Condition The Municipality did not comply in these cases with Chapter Four (4) and 
Chapte.r eight (8) of the Revised Regulations on Basic Standards for the 
Municipalities of Puerto Rico and the 24CFR, Part 85.36. 

Recommendation We recommend the Municipality to improve Its internal control and 
procedures in order to assure that disbursement vouchers includes all 
the required supporting documents before the issuance of any payment 

Questioned Costs None 

Management Response 
And Corrective Action The Municipality concurs with the finding. The Municipality will verify its 

internal controls and procedures to assure that all disbursement 
vouchers contain all the necessary supporting documents. Instructions 
were given to the Finance Department personnel to follow up on this 
finding. 

Instructions were given to not accept exclusive distribution letters from 
suppliers for the Head Start Program and to adequately document the 
quotation process for each applicable case. 
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Instructions were given to improve the documentation of the 
competence requirements when contracted providers to offers the Head 
Start Program Professional Services. The program will document in the 
applicable cases documentation as Resumes, request for proposal 
letters or announcements. 

Related to the Catering Services for the Head Start Program activities, 
the program staff developed a procedure to assure the persons invited 
for each activity confirm their assiStance. 

Implementation date: 3/8/05 

Responsible Person: Mr. Luis R. Sierra Salgado - Finance Director and 
Mrs. Saraf Melendez - Program Director. 
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04-04 

Community Development Block Grants - State's Program (CFDA. No. 
14.228); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development; Pass 
through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico - Office of Commrssioner of 
Municipal Affairs 

Cash Management 

StatementofCondition We realized Cash Management Test and after our procedures were 
performed we found the following exceptions: 

a. The program deposited $50,820.20 in March 4, 2004 which belongs 
to requisition number 34, related to SBGP Program 02-FC-22-003. In 
March 4, 2004 the program disbursed $47,262.79 of the total funds 
received. As result the program maintained an available balance in 
bank of $3,557.41 which was not disbursed in a reasonable time. 

b. The program deposited $30, 724.53 in March 16, 2004 with 
requisition number 37 for SBGP Program 02-FC~22-003. In March 
19, 2004 the program disbursed $28,573.81 of the total funds 
received. As result the program maintained an available balance in 
bank of $2,150. 72 which was not disbursed in a reasonable time. 

c. The program deposited $39,536.92 in March 29, 2004 with 
requisition number 38 for SBGP Program 02-FC-22-003. In the same 
day the program disbursed $36,.769.34 of the total funds received. 
As result the program maintained an available balance in bank of 
$2,767.58 which was not disbursed in a reasonable time. 

d. The program deposited $28,470 in May 18, 2004 with requisition 
number 43 for SBGP Program 02-FC-22-001. In the same day the 
program disbursed $26,477.10 of the total funds received. As result 
the program maintained an available balance in bank of $1,99'2.90 
which was not disbursed in a reasonable time. 
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Effect of Condition 
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Questioned Costs 

04-04 (Continued) 

e. The program deposited $51, 703 in April 23, 2004 with requisition 
number 41 for SBGP Program 02~FC-22-001. In the same week the 
program disbursed $45,801.14 of the total funds received. As result 
the program maintained an available balance in bank of $5,901.86 
which was not disbursed in a reasonable time. 

f. We noted as of June 30, 2004 the program maintained an average 
cash balance per month of approximately $25,500. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Subpart I, Secti'on 85.20 (b) (7) states 
that units of general local governments shall use procedures to minimize 
the time elapsed between the transfer of funds by the state and 
disbursements for CDBG activities, according with Treasury Circular 
1075. Units of general local government shall also use procedures to 
minimize the time elapsed between the t ransfer of funds by the state 
and disbursement of CDBG activities. 

Income tax withholdings realized to consultants or employees are 
disbursed by the finance department at the end of each of each month 
and not when funds are received. 

The Municipality requested funds in excess of immediate needs and for 
that reason the Municipality did not comply with the Code of Federal 
Regulations 24, Subpart I, Section 85.20 (b) (7). 

We recommend that management should strengthen it's procedures to 
minimize the time elapsed between the transfer of funds from the 
federal entity and the disbursements made by the Municipality. 

None 
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Management Response 
And Corrective Action The program maintains adequate control procedures related to the cash 

management. The available balance not disbursed in a reasonable time 
of the total federal grants received from the pass-through agency 
correspond to salaries, benefrts and retentions of Income Taxes retained 
to suppliers or employees which are paid by the finance department at 
the end of each month. 

Implementation Date: 4/1/04 

Responsible Person: Roberto Vera Molina - Program Accountant 
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Finding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

04-05 

Community Development Block Grants - state's Program (CFDA. No. 
14.228); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development; Pass 
through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico - Office of Commissioner of 
Municf pal Affairs 

Procurement and Suspension and Debarment 

Statement of Condition During our contract provision test of Six (6) contracts amounting to 
$679,295. We noted the following situations: 

Criteria 

Cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned COsts 

a. Four (4) contracts did not include a provision for granting access to 
GAO or other federally agency, to books, documents, etc. 

b. Two (2) contracts did not include provisions for retention of all 
required records for three years. 

c. One ( 1) contract did not include provisions for compliance with Clean 
Air Act and Water Act 

d. Two (2) contracts did not include provisions for compliance with 
Energy Policy and Conservation Act. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Subpart I, Section 570.489 (g) requires 
that all purchase orders and contracts include all clauses required by 
Federal Statutes. executive orders and implementing regulations. 

The Municipality internal control procedures failed to assure that 
contract Includes all required clauses. 

In these cases, the Municipality was not in compliance with Code of 
Federal Regulation 24, Subpart I, Section 570.489 (g). 

We recommend that the Municipality should strengthen its procedures in 
order to assure that the contracts contain all provisions requested by 
federal agencies. 

None 
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Anding Reference 04-05 (Continued) 

Management Response 
And Corrective Act.ion The contract office was informed to complete with this requirement and 

a contract model was submitted to them including the clauses required 
by federal regulations. 

Implementation Date: 3/8/05 

Responsible Person: Mariano Lopez, Director 
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04-06 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program CFDA (14.871) U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Allowable Cost and Cost Principles 

Statement of Condition Section 11 - Financial Statements Findings- Finding Reference 04-03.-
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Program 

Requirement 

04-07 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program (CFDA 14.871) U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Eligibility of Individuals 

Statement of Condition During our verification of twenty five (25) participant files we noted the 
following exceptions related to the Housing Assistance Payment 
calculation: 

Criteria 

cause of Condition 

a. In one (1) case the Housing Assistance Payment was not in 
accordance with the actualized Family Report (Form 50058) 
calculation. As result the program realized an underpayment of $40. 

b. In five (5) cases we found errors in the Utility Allowance used to 
calculate the Housing Assistance Payment. As result the program 
realized an incorrect payment of $856.50. 

c. In one (1) case the program did not used the minimum rent payment 
of $25 as stated in the annual plan to calculate the Housing 
Assistance Payment. As result the program realized an 
underpayment of $75. 

d. No quality control samples of applicants were documented with the 
SEMAP Report by the program staff necessary to verify the 
compliance with the determination of adjusted income requirement. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24 CFR, Section 982.505 establishes the 
procedures to follow in order to calculate the Housing Assistance 
Payment. The Housing Choice Voucher Guidebook, Chapter six (6) 
establishes procedures for the Hap's calculation. 

The Municipality internal control and procedures failed to assure that the 
HAP ca lculation for these participants were calculated using the correct 
utility allowance as stated in the HAP Contract. 
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Anding Reference 04-07 (Continued) 

Effect of Condition In these cases the Municipality was not in compliance with Code of 
Federal Regulations 24, 982.505. 

Recommendation We recommend the Municipality to improve its monitoring procedures in 
order to assure that HAP's are duly calculated. 

Questioned Costs None 

Management Resppnse 
Corrective Action PHA will establish internal controls and procedures to assure that the 

participant ffles include all documentation required by federal agencies 
and the HAP's are duly calculated. The PHA will state procedures as 
follows: 

a. We will train the staff related to Income and Rent Calculation 
documentation and procedures. 

b. We will conduct a Reasonable Rent Study and update the Utility 
Allowance Schedule. 

c. We will conduct quality control procedures to assure that PHA 
compliance with the complete documentation in files and the correct 
rent calculation. 

Implementation Date: 03/8/2005 

Responsible Person: Arlyn Velez, Technician and Maria I. 
Molina, Director 
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Program 

Requirement 

04-08 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program (CFDA 14.871) U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Eligibility of Individuals 

Statement of Condition We performed an eligibility test and examined a sample of twenty five 
(25) participant files. The following will summarize the exceptions noted: 

a. The Municipality did not document in the participant files why third 
party verification of the value of assets was not obtained during the 
eligibility determination. 

b. In two (2) participant files the family composition photo was not 
available. 

c. In four (4) participant files the application form did not detail the 
date which was fulfilled. 

d. In two (2) participant files the Privacy Act Notice was not signed by 
participants of eighteen years or older. 

e. There was no evidence of the Labor Department Certification of 
one (1) participant in the annual reexamination. 

f. There was no evidence of the Family Department "Asume" 
Certification of two (2) participants in the annual reexamination. 

g. There was no evidence of the Social Security Copy of two (2) 
participants in the files. 

h. There was no evidence of the Family Department Verification in one 
(1) participant file. 

i. In twenty two (22) participant files the program did not documented 
the student certification of children under eighteen years old. 
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Cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

04-08 (Continued) 

j. In one (1) participant file the Housing Assistance Payment Voucher 
was not duly documented and signed by the participant and the 
Program Director. 

k. In one (1) participant file the birth certificate was not available for 
examination. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Sections 5.230, and 982.516 states 
that as a condition of admission or continued occupancy, the PH'A must 
require the tenant and other family members to provide necessary 
information, documentation and releases for the PHA to verify income 
eligibility. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Section 5.212 states that all assistance 
applicants shall be provided with a Privacy Act Notice at the time of 
application and at each annual income recertification. 

The Municipality internal control procedures failed to assure that the 
participant files include all required documentation and releases 
required by federal agencies. 

In these cases the Municipality was not in compliance with Code of 
Federal Regulations 24, Sections 5.212, 5.230 and 982.516. 

We recommend the Program to establish monitoring procedures to 
assure that the participant's files include all documentation required by 
federal agencies. In addition, third party verification should be obtained 
to verify the value of assets or the Municipality must include adequate 
documentation explaining the reason why third party verification was not 
obtained. 

None 
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Management Response 
And Corrective Action PHA will establish internal controls and procedures to assure that the 

participant files Include all documentation required by federal agencies 
and the HAP's are duly calculated. The PHA will state procedures as 
follows: 

d. We will document the value of assets verification for each 
participant. 

e. We will request student certification to applicable cases. 

f. We will train the staff regarding Income and Rent Calculation 
documentation and procedures. 

g. We will conduct a Reasonable Rent Study and update the Utility 
Allowance Schedule. 

h. We will conduct quality control procedures to assure that PHA 
compliance with the complete documentation in files and the correct 
rent calculation. 

Implementation Date: 03/ 8/05 

Responsible Person: Arlyn Velez, Technician and Maria I. 
Molina, Director 
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Finding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

04-09 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program (CFDA 14.871) U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Special Test and Provisions - Selection from the Waiting List 

Statement of Condition During our waiting list test we noted the following exceptions: 

Criteria 

cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

a. We did not obtain sufficient documentation which permitted us 
determine how participants were selected from the top of the waiting 
list. The program staff did not document adequately the status of 
each case in the waiting list, detailing if a voucher was assigned to 
the participant .or if the participant was dismissed from the waiting 
list or if the opportunity letter was returned by the .post office. 

b. During fiscal year 2003-2004 the program staff did not considered 
the federal or local preferences detailed in the annual plan to assign 
the vouchers to the participants. 

c. No quality control samples of applicants were documented with the 
SEMAP Report by the program staff to verify the compliance with the 
requirement. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24, sections 982.54 (d) and 982.201 
through 982.207 states the waiting list procedures and that the 
selection from the waiting list generally occurs when the PHA notifies a 
family whose names reaches the top of the waiting list to come in to 
verify eligibility for admission. 

The program did not leave a clear audit trail in the participants' selection 
from the waiting list. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with 24 CFR sections 982.54 (d) 
and 982.201 through 982.207. 

The Municipality must assure that the documentation of the selection of 
participants from the waiting list leave a clear audit trial that can be 
used to verify that each participant has been selected in accordance 
with the methods specified in the administrative plan. 
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Questioned Costs None 

Management Response 
And Corrective Action PHA will purge, organize, and document the waiting list as required. 

Preference and alternate method to alternate the preferences will be 
duly documented in the waiting list as established in the administrative 
plan. PHA will guarantee that the staff understands the regulations 
regarding the waiting list through training. 

Implementation Date: The corrective actions were made and we have 
taken preventiVe procedures for future .cases. 

Responsible Person: Marfa I. Molina, Director 
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Anding ·Reference 04-10 

Program Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program (CFDA 14.871) U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Requirement Special Test - Reasonable Rent 

StatementofConditlon During the current year the Federal Program Department did not 
documeht the reasonable rent determination in accordance with the 
administrative plan in the participant file. In addition, no quali.ty control 
samples of applicants were documented with the SEMAP Report by the 
program staff to verify the compliance with the requirement. 

criteria Code of Federal Regulations 24, Sections 982.54 (d)(15), 982.158 (f)(7) 
and 982.507 states that the PHA must determine reasonable rent at the 
time of the initial leasing and must maintain records to document the 
basis for the determination that the tent paid to the owner is reasonable. 

Cause Qf Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

The Federal Program Department did not maintain adequate 
documentation in the participant files to support the basis for the 
determination that the rent paid to the owner is reasonable. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 
24, Sections 982.54 (d)(15), 982.158 (f)(7) and 982.507. 

We recommend to the Federal Program Department to establish 
adequate controls to assure that appropriate documentation of the 
determination of reasonable rent is maintained in each participant's file. 

None 
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Management Respoose 
And Corrective Action PHA will establish a unit to work on all tasks concerning the rent 

reasonableness. The PHA wilt appoint the necessary resources and 
appoint additional staff regarding rent reasonableness and program 
policies. The program will collect and evaluate newspapers, internet and 
neighborhoods communities in the Municipalities of Toa Alta, Vega Alta, 
and the Toa Baja the rent market of unassisted units to establish a 
database for reasonable rent determination. 

Implementation Date: June, 2005 

Responsible Person: Carmen Vazquez, Housing Inspector 
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Finding Reference 04-11 

Program Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program (CFDA 14.871) U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Requirement Special Test - Utility Allowance Schedule 

Statement of Condition The Municipality did not use an up-to-date utility allowance schedule for 
Housing Assistance Payment calculation for the audit period ending June 
30, 2004. The last time that the utility allowance was updated was 
during the year 1995. 

Crtterta Code of Federal Regulations, 24 CFR Section 982.517 states that the 
Municipality must maintain an up-to-date utility allowance schedule. The 
Municipality must review utility rate· data for each utility category each 
year and must adjust its allowance schedule if there has been a rate 
change of 10 percent or more for a utility category or fuel type since the 
last time utility allowance was revised. 

Cause of Condition The Municipality did not use an updated utility allowance schedule. 

Effect of Condition The Municipality is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations, 
24 CFR Section 982.517. 

Recommendation The Municipality should use an up-to-date utility allowance schedule 
based on the typical cost of utilities and service paid by conservative 
households that occupy housing of similar size and type in the same 
locality. 

Questioned Costs None 

Management Response 
And CorrectiVeActJon PH~ will review the Utility Allowance Schedule and adjust the allowances 

where there was a change of 10% or more. The PHAwill obtain from AAA 
and AEE the payment histories of assisted units in order to create an up 
to date utility allowance schedule and use it to calculate the correct 
utility allowance for each reexamination and new cases. 

Implementation Date: June, 2005 

Responsible Person: Technicians- : Sarah Villanueva, 
Accountant and Lydia Kuilan, Administrative Assistance 
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Finding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

04-12 

Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600); U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Administration for Children and Families 

Allowable Cost and Cost Principles 

Statement of Condition Section II - Financial Statements Findings- Finding Reference 04-03. 
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Finding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

04-13 

Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600); U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Administration for Children and Families. 

Cash Management 

statement of Condition During our Cash Management Test we found the following exceptions: 

Criteria 

cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

a. The program did not maintain proper documentation which permitted 
an adequate audit trail to reconcile the funds received from the pass· 
through grantor with the disbursements issued by the program. 

a. As of May 31, 2004 the outstanding checklist includes a check of 
$825 issued in December 23, 2004 for income tax or social security 
retentions. We could not determine if the check was paid by the bank 
at the end of our field work date. 

OMS Common Rule, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (7), requires a cash 
management system in order 10 minimize the time elapsed between the 
transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and the disbursements made by 
the grantee. 

There are no adequate internal controls to assure that funds requested 
to the federal agency are disbursed for immediate needs. 

The Municipa lity is not in compliance with OMS Common Rule, Subpart 
C, Section 92.20 (b) (7). 

We recommend management to follow cash management system 
procedures developed by it in order to assure that funds requested are· 
disbursed as required by the regulation. 

None 
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Management Response 
And corrective Action The program follows "ACUDEN" procedures for the request and 

disbursement offederal funds. 

Implementation Date: 7 /1/03 

Responsible Person: Sarai Melendez - Program Director 
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Finding Reference 04-14 

Program Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600}; U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Administration for Children and Families. 

Requirement Matching, Level of Effort, Earmarking - Matching 

Statement of condition During our matching requirements test we noted that the matching 
contributions for the program year ended February 28, 2004 as per 
monthly reports submitted to the pass-through Agency did not agree with 
the accounting records because the monthly reports are prepared based 
in estimated amounts. In addition, we found the following exceptions: 

Criteria 

a. In kind contribution supporting documents which belong to February, 
2004 were not accounted (footed) by the program staff. As result, we 
could not determine the mathematical correction of the amounts 
detailed in the general ledger. 

b. In kind contributions recorded in the accounting records "Cash 
Register" which belong to February, 2004 did not agree with the 
amounts recorded in the general ledger. 

c. Adjustments posted in the general ledger are not duly documented by 
the. program accountant. 

Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 1301.20 states that 
the Municipality is required to contribute at ·least twenty percent (20%) 
of the cost of the program through cash or in kind contribution. Also, 
Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 92.24 (b) (6) states 
that costs and third party in-kind contributions counting towards 
satisfying a cost sharing or matching requirement must be verifiable 
from the records of grantees and sub-grantees or cost-type contractors. 
Those records must show how the value placed on third party in-kind 
contributions was derived. 
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Cause of Condition The Municipality did not maintain appropriate internal control 
procedures to assure that monthly reports submitted to the pass through 
agency· are in accordance with expenditures recorded In the accounting 
records as matching contribution. 

EffectofCondition Such condition may cause Municipal.ity's non-compliance with certain 
compliance requirements like allowable costs and matching share. 

Recommendation We recommend to the Municipality Management to follow regulations 
established through Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 
92.24. Also, we recommend the Municipality to maintain actualized 
accounting records in order to prepare the monthly reports submitted to 
the pass-through agency based in actual expenditures and not in 
estimated expenditures. 

Questioned Costs None 

Management Response Instructions were given to the program accountant to establish the 
adequate control and procedures to assure that cash register books and 
the general ledger are actualized in a timely basis to assure that monthly 
reports submitted to the pass-through agency includes actual costs and 
not estimates in order to avoid this situation in the future. 

Implementation Date: 3/8/05 

Responsible Person: Saraf Mefendez, Program Director and Teresa 
Acevedo, Program Accountant. 
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Finding Reference 04-15 

Program Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600); U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services: Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Administration for Children and Families. 

Requirement Matching, Level of Effort. Earmarking - 15% Administrative Cost Limits 

Statement of Condition The Accounting System kept by the Head Start Program did not provide 
for the classification of financial transactions between administration 
and programmatic costs. Alternate procedures were used by the 
program staff to compute compliance with the fifteen percentage (15%) 
administrative cost limit. 

Criteria Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (a) (2) states 
that the sub grantees must maintain fiscal controls and accounting 
procedures sufficient to permit the tracing of funds to a level of 
expenditures necessary to establish that such funds have not been used 
in violation of the restriction and prohibitions of applicable statutes. 

cause of Condition The Municipality did not maintai'n adequate internal controls to assure 
the accountability of all transactions in accordance with Federal 
Regulations. 

Effect of Condition Such condition may cause Municipality's non-compliance with certain 
compliance requirements like allowable costs, activities allowed and 
unallowable and earmarking. 

Recommendation We recommend the Municipality to modify the Accounting System chart 
of accounts to create separate accounts for administrative and 
programmatic expenditures. Also, cost with dual benefits (administrative 
and programmatic) should be identified and allocated appropriately 
using a cost-benefit proportion. 

Questioned Costs None 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPAUTY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section Ill - Mayor Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding Reference 04-15 (Continued) 

Management Response 
And CorreotJve Action The program accountant prepares the Report of 15% of Administrative 

Cost with the actual expenses of the program. Th.is report prepared by 
"ACUDEN", separates administrative costs from programmatic costs with 
given percentages. The program accountant adapts the report to reflect 
actual expenses by the program. 

Implementation Date: 7 /1/02 

Responsible person: Mrs. Teresa Acevedo 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUElUO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section Ill - Major Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs 

Anding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

04-16 

Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600); U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Administration for Children and Families. 

Procurement. Suspension and Debarment 

Statement of Condition In our contract provisions test we observed the following exceptions: 

Criteria 

Cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

a. The Municipality did not formalize a contract with a consultant to 
provide training services for three (3) days to fifty nine (59) 
employees. 

b. The Municipality did not formalize a contract with a consultant to 
provide training services for forty (40) hours to eight {8) employees. 

c. One {1) contract did not include provisions for granting access to GAO 
or other federal agencies, to books, documents, papers, records of the 
contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract for the 
purpose of making an audit and examination. 

d. One (1) contract did not include provisions for retention of all required 
records for a three years period. 

45 CFR, Subpart C, Section 92.36 {I) {1.-13), states that sub grantee's 
contract must contain provisions described in paragraph {I) of this 
section. 

The Municipality procurement standard procedures failed to assure that 
all contracts include all required provisions. 

In these cases, the Municipality is not in compliance with 45 CFR, 
Subpart C, Section 92.36 (I) {1.-13). 

We recommend management to include all contract provisions required 
by federa l regulations before each contract execution. 

None 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section Ill - Mayor Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding Reference 04-16(Continued) 

Management Response 
And Corrective Action The program Director sent a letter to Ms. Sonia Arroyo, Director of the 

Municipality's Secretary Office, requesting information of the clauses 
required to be included in the Federal fund contracts. New contracts for 
the following fiscal year will contain all clauses requested by Federal 
Law. 

Implementation Date: 7 /1/04 

Responsible Person: Mrs. Sara hf Melendez - Program Director 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALllY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section Ill - Major Federal Award Program Findin~ and Questioned Costs 

Finding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

04-17 

Head Start Program (CFDA. No. 93.600): U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services: Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Administration for Children and Families 

Reporting 

Statement of Condition In our Reporting Test we observed the following exceptions: 

Criteria 

Cause of Condition 

a) The Fund Liquidation Report, the Trial Balance and the Financial 
Report for the program year ended February 28, 2004 were 
submitted to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Administration for 
Children and Families after the deadline. 

b) We found differences between the amounts reported as federal 
expenditures in the monthly financial reports submitted to the pass­
through agency and the amounts detailed in the cash register and 
the general ledger. 

c) The expenditures detailed in the monthly f inancial reports are based 
in estimates. As result the financial reports are not in accordance 
with the program accounting records. Differences are not adjusted in 
the closing reports. In addition, we noted that no adequate 
procedures exist to adequately document the adjustments realized to 
the general ledger accounts. 

The grant agreement between the Administration for Children and 
Families states that final year reports should be submitted within the 
first twenty days after the ending of the program year. In addition, OMB 
Common Rules, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (1), states that the grantee 
must maintain internal control procedures that permits proper tracing of 
funds to the accounting records. Also, it requires accurate. current and 
complete disclosure of financial results. 

No adequate internal controls exist to assure the timely submission of 
closing reports to agencies as required by grant agreements. Also, the 
Municipality has not established adequate internal control procedures to 
assure the correctness of the reports. 

97 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section Ill - Major Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding Reference 04-17 (Continued) 

Effect of Condition The Municipality did not comply with the grant agreement which require 
the timely submission of reports to the Administration for Children and 
Families. The Municipality did not comply with 24 CFR Section 92.20 (b) 
(1). 

Recommendation We recommend that the required reports be prepared including all the 
required information and submitted in a timely manner. If the deadline is 
not achievabJe, a request for an extension should be obtained from the 
federal agency. Also, we recommend that the Municipality establish 
monitoring procedures to assure the accuracy of accounting records and 
a correct completion of the closing reports. The program accountant 
must establish adequate communication channels with the finance 
department in order to obtain documental evidence related to cash 
receipt and disbursements in a daily manner, in order to be posted in the 
cash register maintained by the program. This control will assure that 
accounting records are actualized at the end of each month in order to 
prepare accurate monthly reports to the pass-through agency. In 
addition, the accountant must assure that the cash register and the 
general ledger are duly reconciliated and journal entries posted in the 
general ledger are duly documented and explained. We consider that the 
program director must evaluate the implementation of a computer 
accounting software to maintain the program books due to a volume of 
transactions manual books are considered inefficient. 

Questioned Costs None 

Management Response 
And Corrective Action Instructions were given to the program accountant to establish the 

adequate control procedures to assure that cash register books and the 
general ledger are actualized in a timely basis to assure that monthly 
reports submitted to the pass-through agency includes actual costs and 
not estimates in order to avoid this situation in the future. 

Implementation date: 3/8/05 

Responsible Person: Mrs. Sarah! Melendez, Program Director and Teresa 
Acevedo, Program Accountant. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

04-18 

Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600); U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Administration for Children and Families. 

Period of Availability of Funds 

Statement of Condition During our test we noted the following exceptions related to period of 
availability of funds; 

Criteria 

Cause of COndition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

a. The Municipality paid $5,082.40 to a supplier with the disbursement 
voucher 4001269 in December 16, 2003 after the expiration of the 
waiver approved by the pass-through agency. 

b. The Municipality paid $2,000 to a supplier with the disbursement 
voucher 4000619 in March 4, 2004 after the expiration of the 
waiver approved by the pass-through agency. 

The grant agreement stated in clause number nine (9), point number 
twelve (12) that the Federal regulation states a term of ninety days for 
the liquidation of obligations pending to be paid at the year closing. After 
that date the program is not authorized to perform additional payments 
with federal funds and the Municipality will be responsible to liquidate 
the obligations with local funds except if a waiver is obtained from the 
pass-through agency. 

The Municipality did not establish adequate monitoring procedures to 
assure that obligations are liquidated as required by grant agreement. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with the Grant Agreement and 45 
CfR; Subpart C, Section 92.23 (b). 

We recommend the Municipality to establish adequate internal controls 
to avoid this situation occurred in the future. 

none 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding Reference 04-18 (Continued) 

Management Response In these cases the Head Start program submits the vouchers for 
payment to the finance department. Those payments were stopped in 
the finance department until the suppliers submit required 
documentation, causing a payment delay of ninety (90) days. 

Implementation date: 3/8/05 

Responsible Person: Mrs. Saraf Melendez, Program Director and Teresa 
Acevedo, Program Accountant. 
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Original 
Finding 
Number 

03-05 

03-06 

03-07 

03-08 

03-09 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CFDA No. Current Status of Prlor Year Audit Federal Award Findings - Part Ill Findings 
(As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

14.228 The Municipality should strengthen its crocedures to assure that at 
least two visits per month are realized to participant housing unit in. 
order to ensure the quality of services related to the Housekeeper 
Assistance Project 

Full corrective action was taken. 

14.228 The Municipality should improve its internal control and procedures 
in order to assure that adequate competence is promoted for the 
acquisition of professional services with federal_ funds. 

Full corrective action was taken. 

14.228 The Municipality should strengthen it's Cash Management 
procedures to minimize the time· elapsed between the transfer of 
funds from the federal entity and the disbursements made by the 
Municipality. Also. we recommend that management should 
strengthen its accounting procedures in order to assure a clear 
trace of transactions to the accounting records. 

Partial Corrective- Action was taken. The auditors rei'ssued the 
finding for the current year. Finding Reference 04-04 . 

.14.228 the Municipality should strengthen its procedures in order to assure 
that the contracts contain all provisions reauested by federal 
agencies. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-05. 

14.871 The Municipality should improve its internal control and procedures 
in order to assure that disbursement vouchers includes all the 
required supporting documents before the issuance of any payment. 

Partial corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding 
for the current year. Finding Reference 04-06. 
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Original 
Finding 
Number 
03-10 

03-11 

03-12 

03-13 

03-14 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS- (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CFDA No. current Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Findings - Part Ill Findings 
(As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

14.871 The Municipality should improye it's monitoring controls in order to 
assure that HAP's are duly computed. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-07. 

14.871 The Municipality should establish monitoring procedures to assure 
that the participant's files include all documentation required by 
federal agencies. In addition. third party verification should be 
obtained to verify the value of assets or the Municipality must 
include adequate documentation explaining the reason why third 
party verification was not obtained. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-08. 

14.871 The Municipality should strengthen its procedures to verify and 
evaluate tbe_ cash balance in books in order to comply with cash 
management requirement. In the case that an excessive cash 
balance is maintained in the bank the orogram must request HUD to 
adjust future fund advances. 

Full corrective action was taken. 

14.871 The Municipality must assure that the documentation of the 
selection of participants 'from the waiting list leave a clear audit trial 
that can be used to verify that each participant has been selected in 
accordance with the methods specified in the administrative plan. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-09. 

14.871 The Municipality should establish adequate controls to assure that 
appropriate documentation of the determination of reasonable rent 
is maintained in each participant's file. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-10. 
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Original 
Finding· 
Number 
03-15 

03-16 

03-17 

03-18 

03-19 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDrT ANDINGS- (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CFDA No. Current Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Findings - Part Ill Finding.5 
(As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

14-871 The MunicipalitV should use an uo-to-date utility allowance 
schedule based on the typical cost of ut llit ies and service_ paid by 
conservative households that occupy housing of similar size and 
type in the same local tty. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-11. 

93.600 The Municipality should improve jts internal control and procedures 
in order to assure that disbursement voucher include all the 
required supporting documents before the issuance of any payment. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-12. 

93.600 The Municioality should follow cash management svstem 
procedures developed by it in order to assure that funds requested 
are disbursed as required by the regulation. 

93.600 

Partial corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding 
for the current year. Finding Reference 04-13. 

The Municipality should modify the Accounting Svstem chart of 
accounts to create separate accounts for administrative and 
programmatic exoenditures. Also. cost with dual benefits 
(administrative and programmatic) should be identified and 
allocated approor:iately using a cost-benefit proportion. 

Partial corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding 
for the current year. Finding Reference 04-14. 

93.600 The Municipality should include all contract provisions reaujred by 
federal regulations before each contract execution. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-16. 
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Original 
Finding 
Number 
03-20 

02-06 

02-09 

02-.10 

02-11 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS- (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CFOA No. Current Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Findin~ - Part Ill Findln~ 
(As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

93.600 The Municipality must assure that the required reports be prepared 
including all the required information and submitted in a timely 
manner. If the deadline is not achievable. a request for an extension 
should be obtained from the federal agency. Also. we recommend 
that the Municipality establish monitoring procedures to assure the 
accuracy of accounting records and a correct completion of the 
closing reports. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-17. 

93.600 The Municipality should follow cash management svstem 
procedures developed by it in order to assure that funds ·requested 
are disbursed as required by the regulation. 

Partial corrective action has been taken. The auditors reissued the 
finding for the current year. Finding Reference 04-13. 

93.600 The Municipality should modify the Accounting System chart of 
accounts to create separate accounts for administrative and 
programmatic expenditures. Also. cost with dual benefits 
{administrative and programmatic) should be identified and 
allocated appropriately using a cost-benefit proportion. 

Partial corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding 
for the current year. Finding Reference 04-14. 

93.600 The Municipality should include all contract provisions required by 
federal regulations before each contract execution. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-16. 

93.600 The Municipality should prepared the required reports including all 
the required information and submit them in a timely manner. ff the 
deadline is not achievable. a request for an extension should be 
obtained from the federal agency. Also. the Municipality should 
establish monitoring procedures to assure the accuracy of 
accounting records and a correct completion of the closing reports. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
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Original 
Finding 
Number 

02-13 

02-14 

02~15 

02-17 

02-18 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRJOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS- (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CFDANo. Current Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Findings - Part Ill Findings 
(As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

the current year. Finding Reference 04-17. 

14.871 The Municipality should perform monitoring activities in order to 
assure that HAP are duly computed 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-07. 

14.871 The Program should establish monitoring procedures to assure that 
the participant's files include all documentation required by federal 
agencies. In addition. third party verification should be obtained to 
verify the value of assets or the Municipalitv must include adequate 
documentation explaining the reason why third partv verification 
was not obtained. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-08. 

14.871 The Municipality should strengthen it's procedures to minimize the 
time elapsed between the transfer of funds from the federal agency 
and the disbursements made by the Municipality. 

Full Corrective action was taken. 

14.871 The Municipality must assure that the documentation of the 
selection of participants from the waiting list leave a clear audit trial 
that can be used to verify that each participant has been selected in 
accordance with the methods soecified in_ the administrative plan. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-09. 

14.871 The Federal Program Department should establish adequate 
controls to assure that appropriate documentation of the 
determination of reasonable rent is maintained in each participant's 
file. 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-10. 
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Original 
Finding 
Number 

02-19 

01-05 

01-06 

01"'.11 

01-13 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS- (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CFOA No. current Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Finding.5 - Part Ill Findings 
(As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

14.871 The Municipalitv should evaluate utility allowance rate each year as 
established in the federal regulations 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for 
the current year. Finding Reference 04-11. 

93.600 Deficiencies in disbursement test 

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years 
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse. 
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is 
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision 
respect to the finding. 

93.600 No adequate cash management procedures. 

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years 
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse. 
The Federal Agency who de.legated the funds to the Munic'ipality is 
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision 
respect to the finding. 

93.600 Deficiencies in procurement process 

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years 
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse. 
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the· Municipality is 
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision 
respect to the finding. 

93.600 Reporting 

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years 
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse. 
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is 
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision 
respect to the finding 
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Original 
Finding 
Number 

01-16 

01-17 

01-18 

01-20 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS. (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CFDA No. current Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Findings - Part Ill Findings 
(As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

14.855 Deficiencies in Housing Assistance payments calculation 
14.857 

14.855 

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years 
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse. 
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is 
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision 
respect to the frndtng. 

14.857 No adequate cash management procedures. 

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years 
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse. 
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is 
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision 
respect to the finding. 

14.855 Deficiencies in eligibility test 
14.857 

14.855 
14.857 

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years 
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse. 
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is 
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision 
respect to the finding. 

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years 
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse. 
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is 
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision 
respect to the finding. 

00-2 93.600 Lack of proper documentation on participants files 
Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years 
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse. 
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is 
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Original 
Finding 
Number 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS- {CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CFDANo. Current Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Findings - Part Ill Findings 
(As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision 
respect to the finding. 
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I I lut1 I LOpez-Vega,CPA,PSC 
Certified Publtc Accountants I Management Advisors 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Dorado 
Dorado, Puerto Rico 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Mttnlic:t ot 

• Amcricoin Institute of 
Certified Public Accountant! 

• Puerto Rico Soclc1y of 
Certified Public Accountanl'-

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Municipality of Dorado, Puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2004, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the respective financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the respective financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects; the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business 
type-activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
Municipality of Dorado, Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 2004, and the respective changes in 
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

1. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Continued) 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 11 and the Budgetary 
Comparison Schedule-General Fund on page 50 through 51 are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, 
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of the requ ired supplementary information. However, we 
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

San Juan, Puerto Rico 
December 6, 2004 

Stamp No. 1942328 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified' Public Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of this report. 

I I IJ.4ft j LOpez-Vega,CPA,PSC 
Certified P11bhc l\\.~1tunlan1.:, I M:•n11gc:mc11I i\dv1~ort. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JU NE 30, 2004 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the Municipality of Dorado, we offer readers of the Municipality's 
basic financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial 
activities of the Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. This 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) include comparative data, and it has 
been designed accordingly with the following goals: 

a} Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, 
b) Provide an overview of the Municipality's financial activity, 
c) Identify changes in the Municipality's financial position (its ability to 

address the next and subsequent year challenges), 
d} Identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved 

budget,) and; 
e) Identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

Since the MD&A is designed to focus on the current year activities, resulting changes 
and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Municipality's 
financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Municipaltt:y net assets increased by $3,497,754. 
• In the fund financial statements, the governmental activities revenue increased 

$1,067,130 (or 4%) while governmental activities expenditures increase 
$477,187 (or 2%). 

• The General Fund (the primary operating fund) reflected, on a current financial 
resource basis, an increase of $955,118. 

• On a budgetary basis, actual expenditures exceeded actual revenues by 
$(83,557). 

• The Municipality issued bonds amounting to $5,125,000 to finance the 
acquisition of land and building, public works, capital improvements and 
constructions of different projects. 

• The Municipality issued a note payable amounting to $370,000 to acquire 
equipments. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Using This Annual Report 

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the 
focus from previous financial statements. The new focus is on both the Municipality as 
a whole (government-wide) and the major individual funds. Both perspectives 
(government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, 
broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or government to government) and 
enhance the Municipality's accountabifity. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide users of the 
financial statements with a br.oad overview of the Municipality's finances in a manner 
similar to private-sector companies. 

The Statement of Net Asset .presents information on all of the Municipality's assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between both reported as net assets. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of the Municipality is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Municipality's net 
assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless 
of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in 
the Statement of Activities that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
The Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of various 
activities, which are provided by the government's general tax and other revenues. This 
is intended to summarize and simplify the user's analysis of cost of various 
governmental services. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's 
most significant funds, not the Municipality as a Whole. The Municipality has only one 
kind of fund which is the governmental fund. 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the Government Wide Financial Statements. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

However, unlike the Government Wide Financial Statements, Government Fund 
Financial Statements, focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, 
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such information is useful in evaluating the Municipallty's near term financial 
requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government 
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for 
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in 
the government wide financial statements. By doing so, users of the basic financial 
statements may better understand the long-term impact of the Municipality's near 
term financial decisions. Both of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expendftures and Changes in Fund 
Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 

Infrastructure Assets 

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure-roads, bridges, 
underground pipes [unless associated with a utility], etc.) have not been reported nor 
depreciated in government financial statements. GASB 34 requires that these assets 
be valued and reported within the Governmental column of the Government-Wide 
Statements. Additionally, the government must elect to either (a) depreciate these 
assets over their estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset management 
designed to maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. If the 
government develops the asset management system (the modified approach) which 
periodically (at least every third year}, by category, measures and demonstrated its 
maintenance of focally established levels of service standards, the government may 
record its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. The information about the 
condition and maintenance of condition of the government infrastructure assets 
should assist financial statement users in evaluating a local government and its 
performance over time. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENrs DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Assets 

As noted earlier. net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a 
government's financial position. The Municipality's combined net assets (excess of 
assets over liabilities) totaled $7,373,897 at the end of 2004, compared to 
$3,876,143 at the end of the previous year, as restated. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Changes in Net Assets 

The Municipality's net assets increased by $3,497, 754. Approximately 59 percent of 
the Municipality's total revenue came from taxes, while 38 percent resulted from 
grants and contributions, including federal aid. Charges for Services provided 2 
percent of the total revenues. Interest earnings and miscellaneous provided 1 percent 
of the total revenues. The Municipality's expenses cover a range of services. The 
largest expenses were for general government, public works and health and welfare. As 
follow, is presented a comparative analysis of government-wide data. In this analysis 
was determined the percentage change in revenues and expenditures from prior year 
to current year. 

Condensed Statement of Activities 2004 2003 Chanse % 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $617,444 $530,549 $86,895 16% 
Operating grants and contributions 5,756,713 6,233,334 (476,621) (8%) 
Capital grants and contributions 3,715,261 1,326,563 2,388,698 180% 

Genera.I revenues: 
Property taxes 11 ,649,792 9,747,286 1,902,506 20% 
Other local taxes 2.364,343 3,813,748 (1,449,405) (38%) 
Municipal license tax 3,,465,032 3,488,017 (22,985) (1%) 
Grants and contributions not 

restricted to specific programs 1,7 53,989 3,226,941 (1,4 72,952) (46%) 
Interest and investment earnings 194,363 306,304 (111 ,941) (37%) 
Gain (Loss) on retirement of 

Capital Assets (710) (710) 100% 
Miscellaneous 213,032 133,628 79,404 59% 

Total revenues 29,729,269 281806,370 922,889 3% 

Expenses: 
General government 9,611 ,856 8,319,809 1,292,047 16% 
Public safety 1,601,679 1,431,360 170,319 12% 
Public works 6,775,367 8,124.865 (1,349,498) (17%) 
Culture and recreation 745,667 695,492 50,175 7% 
Health and welfare 4.721,072 4,785,521 (64,449) (1%) 
Economic development 1,007,311 2,269,856 (1,262,545) (56%) 
Community development 550,263 407,857 142,406 35% 
Urban development 169,301 169,301 100% 
Other 73,177 (73,177) (100%) 
Interest on long-term debt 1,048,989 .1.054,548 {5.559! (1%) 

Total expenses 26,231 .505 27,162,485 {930,980l (3%) 

Change in net assets 3,497,754 1,643,885 1,853,869 113% 

Net assets. beginning of year 3,876,143 2,232,258 1,643,885 74% 

Net assets, end of year $7 ,373,897 $3,876,143 $3,497,754 90% 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

Changes In Net Assets (Continued) 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 301 2004 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVJOUAL FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near­
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is 
useful in assessing the Municipality's financing requirements. In particular, 
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $15,933,563, a increase of $4,871,518 in 
comparison with the prior year. There are reservations of fund balance amounting to 
$14,896,542. This is the fund balance that it is not available for new spending 
because it has already been committed 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders 
of the prior fiscal year ($979,558), 2) to pay debt service ($4,627,930), 3) to pay for 
capital projects ($8,875,039) and 4) for other purposes($ 414,015). 

Within the governmental funds, it is included the general fund which is the chief 
operating fund of the Municipality. As of June 30, 2004, the general fund has a fund 
balance of$ 1,037,111. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Over the course of the year, the Municipality Council revised the Municipality's budget 
in order to include increases in revenues that were identified during the course of the 
fiscal year based on current developments that positively affected the Municipality's 
finances. Increases in budgeted expenditures were also made since the law mandates 
a balanced budget 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

CAPITAL ASSETS ANO DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The Municipality's investment in capital assets for Governmental Activities as of June 
30, 2004, amounts to $24.142,048, net of accumulated depreciation of $9,172,177, 
leaving a net book value of $14,969,871. For Business - Type Activities investments in 
capital assets as of June 30, 2004, amounts to $3,971,648., net of accumulated 
depreciation of $700,122, leaving a net book value of $3,271,526. This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure and 
construction in progress. Infrastructure asse1s are items that are normally immovable 
and of value only to the state, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage 
systems, lighting systems, and similar items. 

The total increase in the Municipality's investment in capital assets for Governmental 
Activities in the current fiscal year was about 23% in terms of net book value. 
Depreciation charges for the year totaled $ 1, 106,104. 

The total increase in the Municipality's investment in capital assets for 'Business-Type 
Activitres in the current fiscal year was about 1% in terms of net book value. 
Depreciation charges for the year totaled $ 43,037. 

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through 
bond issuances. The proceeds from bond issuances designated for construction 
activities are committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any 
other purposes. As of June 30, 2004, the Municipality has $7 ,898,501 of unexpended 
proceeds from bond issuances that are committed to future construction activities in 
governmental Activities and $409,924 in Business-Type Activities. 

Debt Administration 

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general 
obligation municipal bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit 
and taxing power of each municipality may be pledged. 

The applicable law also requires that in order for a Municipality to be able to issue 
additional general obligation bonds and notes such Municipality must have sufficient 
"payment capacity". 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

MANAGEMENT'S AND DlSCUSSION ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JU NE 30, 2004 

CAPITAL ASSETS ANO DEBT ADMINISTRATION- (CONTINUED): 

Act No. 64 provides that a municipality has sufficient "payment capacity" to incur 
additional general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality's Redemption 
Fund and the annual amounts collected with respect to such Municipality's Special 
Additional Tax (as defined below), as projected by GOB, will be sufficient to service to 
maturity the Municipality's outstanding general obligation debt and the additional 
proposed general obligation debt ("Payment Capacity"). 

The Municipality is required under applicable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in 
such amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal 
bonds and notes. In addition, principal of and interest on all general obligation 
municipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the 
issuance of general obligation bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien 
on the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues. Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax 
revenues would be available to make debt service payments on general obligation 

municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the 
Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption Fund, 
are not sufficient to cover such debt service. It has never been necessary to apply 
Basic Taxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of the Municipality. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal 
grants to carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal 
taxes have been very predictable with increases of approximately five percent. Federal 
grant revenues may very if new grants are available but the revenue also is very 
predictable. 

Those factors were considered when preparing the Municipality's budget for the 2004-
2005 fiscal years. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, 
taxpayer, customers, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the 
Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability. If you 
have questions about the report or need additional financial information, contact the 
Municipality's Chief Financial Officer at P.O Box 588, Dorado, Puerto Ri·co 00646-
0588, Telephone (787) 796-1230. 

11 



Commonl\o~l!lin of Puerto Rico 

Municipality of Dorado 

Statement of Net Assets 

June 30. 2004 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities, Total 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents s 8.314,414 $ 345,789 $ 8.660.203 

Cash with fiscal .aient 12.526,468 409,924 12,936.392 

Accounts receivable-

Municipal license tax '22.702 72,702 

Intergovernmental 940,459 940,459 

Federal grants 437,905 437;905 

other 511.093 26.293 537,386 

Cepital assets 

Land, Improvements. 11nd constructlon 'In process 5,688,669 434,190 6 .. 122,859 

other capital assets. net of depreciation 9,281.202 2,837,336 12,U8,538 

Total capU:al assets 14,969,871 3.271,526 18.241,397 

Total assets '37,722,912 4,053,532 41.776,444 

UablllllH 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1.876.229 7,295 1.883,524 

Oue to other governmental entitles 894,983 894;983 

Defe11ed revenues; 

Municipal license µix 3,083,636 3;083,636 

Federal grant revenues 505,557 505,557 

Interest payable 435.971 55.774 491,745 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Oue within one year 2,928,327 206,560 3.:134.887 

Oue in more than one year 23.066,986 l.341.229 24,408,215 

Total llabllltles 32,791,689 1'610.858 34.402,547 

Net Assets 

Invested In capital assets. net of related debt (5,149,699) 1,723,737 (3.425.962) 

Restricted for: 

Capital proJects: 8,815.039 8,875.039 

Debt service 4,191.959 4,191,959 

Other purpose 414,015 414,015 

unrestricted (deficit) (3.400,091) 718,937 (2.681.154) 

Total net assets $, 4,931.223 $ 2.442.674 $ 7,373,897 

The notes to the flnanc1a1 statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Functions/Programs 

Governmental ActMUes: 
General eo11ernment 
PulJltc safe\Y 
PiibllcwolkS 
Health and welfare 

cuuure anel recteation 
Economic development 
Communi\Y development 
Ult>an Oelle!opnient 
Interest on long-term Clebt 

Tot.al governmental actMtJes 

Business Typ& AatMtleS: 
General Government 
Interest on long-term Clebt 

Totat business \Ype actlViues 
T olal Primary Government 

Commn1h.-11;otlh of Puerto ~lco 

Murilclpallty of Dorado 

Statement of Activities 

for the Year Ended June 30, 2004 

Net (Ellpense) Revenue and 

Program Revenues Chances In Net Assets 
Operatb1g Capital Primary Government 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 

EJJ>enses S'erv!Ces Contributions Contributions ACllYitles Activities 

s 9.S09.004 310,214 s 162.193 s (9.036,597) $ 

1.601.679 'Z,155 65,960 (l,SJJ,564) 

6,775.367 2,242 1.505.984 (S,267.141) 

•.72.1.072 4.~2.03 (128.659) 

745,667 867 (744,800) 

1,007,311 933,038 2,091 (72,182') 

550.263 l.9J8,987 1.388.724 
169,301 268,199 98,898 

927,549 (927.549) 

26,007~13 312.369 S.756,713 3.715,261 (16,222,870) 

102.1152 305,075 202 .. 223 

121.440 (121,440) 

224,292 305,075 80.783 

$ 26,231.505 s 617,444 s 5,758.713 s 3.715 .. 26l ue.22:z.9101 80.783 

General revenues: 
Prooerty UllleS 11,649.792 

Other IOcal lailes 2.384~3 

Ml.ln<clpat license tax 3,465,032 

Grants and· contributions not restrtcte<I to specific programs 1,753.ll89 

Interest anel Investment earnings 194,363 

Gain (Loss) on Retirement of capital Msets (710) 

Mlscehaneoos 213,032 

Transfers 310,000 (310,000) 

Total ·genetal reventJes anel transfers 19.94.9,841 1310,000) 

Chan&e in net as.sets 3.728.971 (229,217) 

Net ilSSets - be!Onnln&. as reslated 1.204.252 2.671,891 

Net assets -enelin' $ 4,931,223 $ 2,442,674 

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement. 

Total. 

l (9,036,597) 

(1,533,564) 

(5.267',lAij 

(128.859) 

(744,800) 

(72.182) 

1.388,724 

98,898 
(927,549) 

(16,222.870) 

202.223 

1121.4401 

80,783 

(18.142.087) 

11.649,792 
2.364,343 

3.465,o:n 

1 ,753,989 
j,94,363 

(710) 

213,032 

19, 639.841 

3,497.154 
3.876,143 

$ 7,373.897 
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
MUnl~!p1•lty of Dorado 

Balance Sheet 

Governmental F•nds 
June 30. 2004 

Sprdal Debt <:apttal Ot~r Total 
General Revenue FIHld SeNlc:e Projects F imd • LoQll Go¥emmental Govemmenlal 

Fund Other Federal Giants Fund Stala and f~ral Cmnts Funds run<1s 

Assets 
casn ano cu11 llQlllV- s S,416.760 s 3 51,761 s 1,821.360 s 66.(.533 s 8.314.04 

Cah """ bcaJ ...,,, 103,g&o .C.52• .007 7,898.SOJ 12.52&.oa 

Accounis rl!'llelvable: 

Municipal lieense laa 7,045 7,045 

lnlei&0-.ern1TB11ai 7-48.848 109,105 101.700 00,806 9'40.459 

Feder et Gr•""' 437,905 437.llOS 

Oua flom Olher funds 6&e.6C7 39.785 706.432 

Othet 64,905 2.862 67,787 

T01al8$SC\s 8 e.5oa,10~ 8 8211 ... 51 M ,035,97• 9,821.501 $ 1,1.45.339 $ 23.000,4!!0 

Uat>llltles and Fund 8a~n'1:S 
LiabllllleS : 
Acoo1Jt1ts payable ano llCCNeCI liallll"Jes s 4 29,131 s 411,719 s 946,522 s 88,857 s l.876.22' 

Duo to olMr '°""'""'°""'' ootllleo 89'1.983 894,983 

Oue to otner lul\OS 39.785 59,471 8.044 599.125 706.02 

Oe(eired revenues: 

Mlln<Clpal license W. 3,083,636 3.083.631 

Federol .,..,t r-ues 328.254 177.303 505.557 

Tout habilitles 4,447,535 799.451 11,0« 946,522 815.215 7.0M,1137 

Fund belanc:cs: 

ResefYed for: 

Et>a.mbrances 979.SSS 979.558 

ca1><1a1 projects 1.17'!>.039 8.175.039 
Olllerpur- 30,000 280,05' 310,054 

Oobt scr>'iee fund 4 ,627.930 4,827,930 

UnroseM!d: 

Oesi111a1cd for speoftc lund llU(llCl5e 103.981 103,96"1 

uno~eneu 1.037.ll1 l ,037,111 

T o111 fund bl lances 2..120.630 30Jl00 4 .627.930 8.8T5.D39 280.054 15.933,653 

Total waomues 1tll0 IUllO 011ances 6,568,1155 s 829 .. 51 $4,1535,974 9.821,561 l.145.339 

AmounlS reoorted for 110Ytmmental adlvlloes on Ule sta lemenl ot net assets a~ OM'letenl because: 

~l basls Of accour1t1nc eocount recelvables reco&nlled in govemment"'k:le finalldal Sl.illem en IS 458,983 

COpiUll 6sSets uliCO In IO'olefn"""'llll activflles are not llnanclal resources Ol1CI, 111erolore, aro "'1l rej>Oneo In the lund> 14.9159,371 

Lant-term M&bllllles ond accrue Inter- are not o.e and ~Ille in tnacunent period, and therefore. are not 

rePC>rted In Ille funds (26.431,28.c) 

Net assets or £j)W!tnmenw ae1w1ties s 4 .931.223 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 14 



Commonwealth or Puerto Rico 

MuH!ci:io:ility of Dorado 
Statement of Revenues, EJcpendltures and Changes In fund Balance$ 

Governmental Fund$ 

For the Year Elided June 30, 2004 

Geneflll Special Debt Capital Other Total 
Fund Revenue Fund Service ~ects Fund· Loail GOYemmental GO\'flrnmental 

Otller Federal Grants Fund State, nd Federal Grants Funds Funds 

·Revenues 
Property taxes s 9,042.124 $ $ 2,607.668 s $ $ 11,649,792 

Municipal license taxes 3.587.761 3,587,761. 

Licenses.permits and other local ta-es 2,189.616 2,189,61.6 

lniergo11ernmental 1,916 .• 181 2,2.43 1,037.562 991.752 3,947,738 

Rent ot property 301,875 301.875 
Fines and rortellures 2.155 2,155 

Interest 194.363 194,363 

Fecle<al grants 1,455,842 4.295.399 5.751.241 
Miscellaneous 118,.Ul 24,387 20,953 223,751 

Total rnvenues 17 ,412.486' 1,482.472 2,607,668 1 ,037,562 5;308,104 27.848,292 

Expenditures 

Curr enc 
General government 9.327.921! s.o:n 6.315 9 .342.274 
Public s;afety ~.714 77,882 100,537 1.435133 
Pvt>hcworks 5.833.015 3,727 1.068,J71 B.493 6.913.406 
Health and welfare 273.119 4,449,233 4.722.352 
Culture and rec;eation 535.771 2,006,023 21,594 2.563.388 
Economic development 2,091 1.005.220 1.007,311 
Community development 900.233 900,233 

Uft>an development 268,199 268.199 
Oebt service: 

Pnnclpat 74,943 i,500,750 1.575.693 
lnt.erest 14,178 874,607 888,785 

Total eJ1pen<11tu.<es 1.7.042,549 1.525.251 2,375.357 3,082,225 5,591,392 29.616,774 

~cess c<1eflc1ency) ot revenues ove1 
(Uneler) experadltules 369,937 (42,779) 232.311 (2.044,663) 1283.288) (1.768,482) 

Other ltnanclng sources (uses) 
1 ransfers 1n 310.000 n,779 360,824 126.216 869,819 

l 1ansfers out (559.819) (559,819) 

Long term debt issuance 835.000 5,495,000 6,930,000 

Total other flnancingsouraes (uses> 585.181 72.779 360,824 .S.495,000 126.216 6,640,000 

Net change in tund balances 9ss,11a 30.000 593.135 3,450,337 (157,072) 4.871.518 

Fund balance. beg>nning, as <estated 1.165.512 4-,034.795 5,424,702 437,126 11.062.135 
F~nel balance, ending 2,L."'<J.630 $ 30,000 s 4 ,627,930 8 ,875,039 $ 280,054 $ 15.933,653 

The notes to the financial stateroe11ts are an Integral part of this statement. 
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Commonwealtfl of Puerto Rico 

Munldpallty of Dorat!o 

Reconcillallon of lhe Statemeii I of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balenc:es of 

Governmental Funds to the Statement of ActlvllJes 

For the Year Ended Jun.e 30, 2004 

Net Changeln Fund Balances-Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the Statement of Activities are different because: 

Prior Year Account Receivables reporteCI In tile Governmental fund Flnanctal Slatements as revenues, but reversed tn the 

Government·Wicle Statement of ActMties and Changes in Net Assets. 

Account Receivables reported in Government-Wide Statement of .Net Assets collected after year end, but not available soon 

enough to pay current liabiHJes. and therefore are not reported in the Governmental funds. 

Donations of capital Assets from outside parties, do not provide current financial resources in Governmental Funds, but tl'le 

transaction must be renected in the Government·Wide Statement of Net Assets based on the ralr value of the donated 

property, 

Governmental Funds report cepital outlays as expenditures. However in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and 

Ctianges ln 'Net Assets, the cost of those assets is allQcated over their estim~ted useful liws as depreciation expense. This 

is the amount of capital assets recorded in the current perlod. 

Loss on Rt!tittm1ents of capital Assets Is reported iri the Governrnent•Wlde Statements of Activities and Change in Net 

Assets, but they do not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, Loss on Retirement of capital Assets is not 

reported as expenditU!'es fn Governmental Fu11ds Financial Statements. 

Depreciation Expense on capital Assets iS reported in the Government-Wide Statements of ActMlies an d Change In Net 
Assets. but they Clo not requJre the use of current financial resources. nierefore. Depreclat1or1 expense is not reported as 

expenditures in Governmental funds Ananclal statements. 

Interest EXpense change is rePorted in tile Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Change in Net Assets. but not 

require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, Interest e.xpense change is not reported as. expenditures In 

Governmental .Funds Financial Statements. 

Long Term Debt Issuances are reported 1n the Govemment·Wide Statement of Net Assets. but not require the use of current 

financial resources. Therefore long Term debt issuances are not reported as expehdltures 10 Govefnmental Funds Financial 

Statements. 

Long Term Debts payments are reported as expenditures ln the Governmental Funds Financial Statements which require the 

use of current financial resources. Therefore Long Term debts payments are not reported as eJ<pendltures in the 

GO\/ernment-Wlde Statement of Activities and Change In Net Assets. 

Change in Landflil Accrual 

Bonds proceeds provldes current financial resources to Governmental Funds, but issuing debt Increase lcmg·terrn liabilities 

In the Government-Wid!l statement of Net Assets. Repayment of bond pnncipal Is an expenditure In Govemmental Funds, 

but the repayment reduces long -term liab1lties in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets. lh1s is the amount by 

which the debt proceeds exceed debt service principal payments. 

Change In Net Assets of Governmental Actlvitles 

The. notes to lhe financial statements are an Integral part of this statement. 

s 4,871,518 

(384.112) 

458.983 

1,501,730 

3 .111,679 

(710) 

(1,106,104) 

(38.763) 

(154,024) 

2 40.145 

55,879 

(4.829.250) 

$ 3,726,971 
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Current As.selS 
Cash and cash eqwvalents 
Cash with fiscal agent 
AceoYn l.s rcc:elvot>le: 
lntemal balances 

OUler 

Total current QSSOts 

Noncurrent Assets 
Caprte l ~sets: 
Property, Plant and cquloment 
land 
Building 
CoJlstrucdon In progress 
Accumulated depreciation 

Total non-eur-.nl a»et.s 

T eta I assets 

current LJablllUes 
Accounts Payallles 
Revenue Funo-Banco Sanianelef loan 
111lerest Payablc-llonco SDntandot Ula.> 

Total current llallllitles 

No11C1Jrr1111t Uallltlles 
Revenue Funo-&tnco Santander loa!I 

To<al l111bl~11es 

NU Assets 
Invested In C8pltal Assets, net of related debt 
Unrestncteel 

Total Net Assets 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUt:RTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DOAAOO 

SlAI CM9il OF NET ASSETS 

PROPlETARV flJNO.BUSINESS TYPE ACTMTY.ENTERPRISE FUND 
YEAR ENDED .MIE 30,200' 

$ 

B~T~ 
ActfviUy 

Enterprise 

345,789 
409.924 

26,293 

782.006 

388,790 
3,!537,4!58 

45.400 
1700,1221 

3,271,528 

4,053,532 

7,295 
206.560 

55,77-4 

269.629 

1 ,341,229 

1 ,341.229 

1 .610.858 

1.723.737 
718.937 

21442,674 

$ 

$ 

Tota l Busl ness Type 
Actlvltly 

Enltrprise 

345,789 
409.924 

26.293 

782,006 

388.790 
3.!537.458 

45.400 
1700,1221 

3,271.526 

4.053.532 

7,295 
206,560 
55,774 

269,629 

1.341 .. 229 

1.341,229 

1,610,858 

1.723,737 
718.937 

2,442,674 

The notes to the t1nanclal statements are an Integral part of this statement. 17 



OperatlnC R~nues: 
Charges 10< sennces 

Total operatmgrevenues 

OjlerallnC Ellpenses: 
OiieraUons and maintenance 
OepreC1atton and AmOfllzation 

Total operating eJlpenditures 

Operahng Income (L05s) 

Non-operaUn& revenues (eJpenses~ 
lnte1est Expense 

Total non.()peflltlng revenues-(e.icpenses) 

Income (Loss) before transfeis 

Transrers (Out) 

Chcinge In Net~ 
Total ne\ 3Sse1$-beginninil 
Total net zsels-ilndlng 

COMr,l•Jl-!W~LrH OF PUERTO FllCO 

MUNICIPALITY OF' DORADO 
STATEMENT OF .REVENUES. EXPENSES ANO CHANGES IN NET ASSm 

PROPIETARY Ft.NDs.8USINESS NPE ACTIVITY-ENTERPRISE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

$ 

s 

Business -Type 
Aci!Villes 
Enterp rise 

305,075 

305,075 

4,435 
9.8 .417 

102,852 

202.223 

(121.4402 

!121.4402 

80,783 

!310,0002 

(229,217) 
21671,891 
2,442,674 

$ 

$ 

Total Business - Type 
Activities 
Enterprise 

305075 

305,075 

-M35 
98,417 

102,852 

202,223 

!121.440! 

!121,440! 

60,783 

j310,000! 

(2.29.217) 
2.671.891 
2.442,674 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 18 



COMMOHWEAllH Of PUERTO RICO 
MUHICIPAUTY Of' DORADO 

STATEMlHT OF CASH FLOWS 
Pl!OPRIETARY RJN~ BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITY· ENTtRPRtSE FUNO 

YEAR El«lEOJUNE 30 2004 

cash Flows tnm Ooe@tl!1C ActMtles: 

Receipts from Customers 

Payment to Suppllets 
Interest paid 

Transfers out to the General Fund· 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

~h Aows tam capita! and Retatecl financing ActiYltles: 

Construction to Plogress 

Ropaymant al Revenue Bond 

Net Cash PnMded (Used) In capita! and Related Flnanclng Adlvttles 

Net Decrease Jn cash and Cllsh Wllll Fiscal Agent, Restricted 

cash and cas11 with Flscal Agent at Beglnnlnfot Penocs, Restrtc:ted 

ca.h and <:ash with Flscal Agent al End of Period, R~rided 

8econcllatloo of OoeraUnc Income t o Net Cash Prgyldcd <Used> 11y 

QoeratlnC ActMtles: 

Operating Income 

Adjustments to Reconclle Operallflg Income lo Net cash Used by Operallng ACtiviUes: 

Depreciation 

Interest Receivables 
Other Receivables 
Accrued Expenses 
Related Company 

Total AOJustmerns 

Net Cosh Pt'O'llded (Used) by Operating Activities 

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part ol t.h1s statement 

$ 305,784 

$ 

(7.120) 

(1.24,708} 

(310.000) 

(135,044) 

(45,400) 

(87,016) 

(132.416) 

(267,460) 

1,023,173 

755,713 

$ (229.217) 

88.437 

(3.266) 

(13,704) 
7,294 

15,412 

94,173 

$ (135,044) 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Municipality of Dorado (the Municipality) was founded on the year 1842. The 
Municipality's governmental system consists of an executive and legislature body. It is 
governed by a Mayor and a fourteen member Municipal Legislature who are elected for a 
four-year term. 

The Municipality provides public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and 
welfare, community development, education, and other miscellaneous services. 

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the Municipality conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") as 
applicable to governmental units. 

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 
34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's and Discussion and Analysis for State 
and Local Governments." This Statement, known as the Reporting Model, provides for the 
most significant change in financial reporting for state and local governments in over 20 
years and affects the way the Municipality prepares and presents financial information. The 
Statement was adopted as of July 1, 2002. In addition to this Statement, GASB Statement 
No. 37, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State 
and Local Governments: Omnibus" and GASS Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial 
Statement Note Disclosures" have been adopted and are reflected in these financial 
statements. 

As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalization 
of local government infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.). This requirement 
permits an optional four-year delay for implementation to fiscal year 2007. The Municipality 
has elected to delay the capitalization of infrastructure. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED} 

A. Component Units 

In evaluating how to define the Municipality for financial reporting purposes, management 
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential 
component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of Statement 
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, of the GASB. The basic, but not the only criterion for 
including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is if elected officials of a 
primary government are financially accountable for the entity. Financial accountability 
exists if the primary governmental appoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body, 
and if either one of the following conditions exist: the primary government can impose its 
will on the other entity or the potential exists for the other entity to (1) provide specific 
financial benefits to or (2) impose specific financial burdens on the primary government. A 
second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is if the nature and 
significance of the relationship between the entity and a primary government are such that 
to exclude the entity from the financial reporting entity would render the financial 
statements misleading or incomplete. GMP details two methods of presentation: blending 
the financial data of the component unit's balances and transactions in a manner similar to 
the presentation of the Municipality's balances and transactions or discrete presentation of 
the component unit's financial data in columns separate from the Municipality's balances 
and transactions. 

8. Government-wide and fund financial statements 

Financial information of the Municipality is presented in this report as follow: 

1. Management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and 
provides an analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities. 

2. The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities) report information on all the activities of the Municipality and its 
component units, if any. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-typed activities, 
if any, which reJy to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. lnterfund 
activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the duplicating effect on 
assets and liabilities within the governmental activities. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment is offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that 
are charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

3. Fund financial statements focus on information about the Municipality's major 
goverhmental funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. The Municipality reports the following major 
governmental funds: 

General Fund- is the accounting entity in which all governmental activity, except that 
which is required to be accounted for in another fund, is accounted for. Its revenues 
consist mainly of taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenue, charges for 
services and other. 

Special Revenue Fund - Other Federal Grants- Is the accounting entity in which 
revenues derived from the federal grants, is accounted for. The use and limitations of 
each special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal statutes. 

Debt Service Fund - is the accounting entity used to account for the resources 
accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term general 
obligation bonds of governmental funds. 

Capital Project Fund - Local and State Grants - is the accounting entity in which 
revenues derived from local funds, state or other restricted revenue sources related to 
capital projects, is accounted for. The uses and limitatrons of each capital project fund 
are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Proprietary Fund Types: 
The Enterprise Fund, which was established in June 1996, is used to account for 
operations (1) that are financed and operated in a similar manner as private business 
enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including 
depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis, 
are financed or recovered primary through uses, charges; or (2) where the governing 
body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, 
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability, or other purposes. The enterprise fund of the Municipality 
includes land and buildings known as "Commercial Pavilion Rafael Hernandez Colon" 
located in 349 Mendez Vigo Street at Dorado, Puerto Rico. The main source of income 
comes from rent received from spaces rented with formal contracts. 

4. The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user's 
understanding of the basic financial statements. 

5. Required supplementary information such as the budgetary comparison schedule­
general fund and other types of data required by GASB. 

6. Notes to the budgetary comparison schedule-general fund. 

C. Financial reporting presentation 

The accounts of the Municipality are organized on the basis of funds, each if which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for 
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund 
equity, revenues, and expenditures. Fund types are as follows: 

General Fund- Is the operating fund of the Municipality. It is used to account for all 
governmental activity, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Fund - Local and State Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to 
account for revenues derived from local funds, state grants or other restricted revenue 
sources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by 
Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Financial reporting presentation 

Special Revenue Fund - Section 8 • Special Revenue Funds are used to account for 
revenues derived from section 8 choice voucher program. The uses and limitations of each 
special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 

Special Revenue Fund - Head Start - Is the accounting entity in which revenues derived 
from the federal agency are used to provide comprehensive health, educational, nutritional, 
social, and other developmental services primarily to economically disadvantaged 
preschool children (ages 3 to 5) and infants and toddler (birth through age 3) so that the 
children will attain school readiness. 

Special Revenue Fund - Other Federal Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to 
account for revenues. derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each special 
revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 

Capital Projects Funds - Local, State and Federal Grants - Capital Project Funds are used 
to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital 
facilities. 

Debt Service Funds- Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related 
costs. 

0. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation 

Except for budgetary purposes, the basis of accounting used by the Municipality conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") as 
applicable to governmental units. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied 
to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they 
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as alt etigibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

The Municipality has elected not to apply all Statements and Interpretations issued by the 
Financial Accounting Standard Board after November 30, 1989, in accordance with GASS 
Statement No.20. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered 
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, 
except for principal and interest on general tong-term debt, claims and judgments, and 
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures when payment is due. 
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditure in governmental funds. 
Proceeds from issuance of general long-term debt reported as other financing sources. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, rent, and interest associated with the current 
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when the government receives cash. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issue prior to December 1, 
1989, generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that 
those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector 
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same 
limitation. The Municipality has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants, and contributions, and 3) 
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments, if any. Internally dedicated 
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they 
are needed. 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimat es and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. "Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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- COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,. 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Assets, liabilities and net assets 

1. Cash, cash equivalents, and cash with fiscal agent- The Municipality's cash and cash 
equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. 

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt services fund represents special additional property 
tax collections retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the 
payment of the Municipality's debt service, as established by law. 

Cash with fiscal agent is shown in the Enterprise Fund which is held by the Government 
Development Bank and its use is limited to the expenditures associated with 
"Commercial Pavilion of Dorado Rafael Hernandez Colon" 

2. Receivables and payables- Activity between funds that are representative of 
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred 
to as either "due to/from other funds" {i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All 
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, if any, are 
offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate 
that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial 
resources. 

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which 
are determined, based upon past collection experience and current economic 
conditions. Intergovernmental receivables in the general fund represent mostly 
contributions from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority {PREPA), which contribute 
As payment in lieu of taxes a twenty percent of its revenues after deductions of 
subsides granted, or an amount equal to the cost of electric power consumed by each 
Municipality, or an average of the contribution in lieu of taxes paid to each Municipality 
in the last five fiscal years whichever is greater. The contribution in lieu of tax revenue 
and related receivable recorded in the General Fund for the current fiscal year was 
determined based on revenue estimates made by the PREPA and actual transactions 
during the current fiscal year, because the final contribution amount from the PREPA 
was not available at the date of release of the basic financial statements. 
Intergovernmental receivable in the special revenue fund represent amounts owed to 
the Municipality for reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally 
funded programs. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANC!.t\L STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

3. Inventories- Inventories in the general fund is recorded as expenditure and, 
consequently, the inventory is not recorded in the statement of net assets. 

4. Capital assets- capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure 
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar ite,ms), are reported in the 
governmental activities column in the governmental-wide financial statements.. The 
Municipality defines capital asset as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$25 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are reported at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital 
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. 

Capital assets of the Municipality are depreciated using the straight··line method over 
the following estimated useful lives: 

Descrlotjon 

Buildings and site improvements 
Infrastructure 
Works of art 
Vehicles 
Furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 

Useful Life 

40years 
40years 
l,O years 
5 years 
5 years 

3 to 5 years 

caoitallzatlon threshold 

$1 
$1 
$1 
$1 

$25 
$25 

5. Long-term obligations- The liabilities reported in the government-wide financial 
statements include to general and special obligation bonds and notes, and other long. 
term liabilities, such as vacation, sick leave, litigation, .long-term liabilities to other 
governmental entities. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances 
cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources, while bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual 
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures. 

6. Compensated absences- Employees accumulate vacation reave at a rate of 2.5 days 
per month up to a maximum of 60 days. Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully 
vested to the employees from the first day of work. All vacation pay it 1s accrued when 
incurred in the government-wide financial statements. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINAMt :tAl STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month Up to a maximum of 
90 days. Upon retirement, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated and 
unpaid sick leave at the current rate, if the employee has at least 10 years of service 
with the Municipality. 

7. Claims and judgments- The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments, 
which is due on demand, such as from adjudicated or settled claims, is recorded in the 
general fund. 

8 . Reservation of fund balance- Reservations of fund balance in the fund financial 
statements, represent portions of fund pa lances that are legally segregated for specific 
future use or are not appropriated for expenditure. The Municipality has the following 
reservations offund balance: 

a. Capital Projects- Represent the reservation of amounts to be used for future 
expenditures for capital projects under contacts and other commitments. These 
committed amounts generally will become liabilities in future periods as the 
projects are completed. 

b. Encumbrances- Represent future expenditures under purchase orders, contracts 
and other commitments. These committed amounts generally will become 
liabilities in future periods as the goods or services are received. 

c. Other Purposes- Represents net assets available for specific use and/or legally 
segregated for other specific future use. 

d. Debt Service Fund- Represents net assets available to finance future debt service 
payments. 

9. lnterfund and intra-entity transactions- The Municipality has the following types of 
transactions among funds: 

a. Operating Transfers- Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as 
"Operating transfer-in'' by the recipient fund and as "Operating transfers-out" by the 
disbursing fund. 

b. Intra-Entity Transactions- Transfers between the funds o1 the primary government 
are reported as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as 
amounts due to and due from other funds. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIA'. STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDEb JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

10.Risk financing- The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft, 
tort claims and other losses. Insurance policies are negotiated by the Puerto Rico 
Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the Municipalities of Puerto 
Rico. 

Cost of insurance allocated to ttie Municipality and deducted from the gross property 
tax collections by the CRIM for the year ended June 30, 2004 amounted to 
approximately $285,606. The current insurance policies have not been cancelled or 
terminated. The CRIM also deducted approximately $378,330 for workers 
compensation insurance covering all municipal employees. 

ii Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance­
total governmental funds and net assets-governmental activities as reported in the 
government-wide statement of net assets. The two elements of that reconciliation 
explains that "long term liabilities, including compensated absences, bonds and notes 
payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in 
the funds.", and that "capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The details of this 
reconciliation are as follows: 

Net assets Invested In caoltal assets. net of related debt 

capital assets. net of depreciation 

Deduct: 
Bonds Payable related to Capital Assets 
Notes Payables related to Capital Assets 
Lease Obligation - IBM 
Lease Obligation- Crossborder 

Net assets restricted for capita! Protects 

Fund balance restricted for capital projects 

Net assets restricted for debt servjce 

Fund balance restricted for debt service 

Deduct: 
Interest Payable 

Net assets restricted for other purposes 

other governmental funds- fund balance restricted 
for other purposes 

$14,969,871 

(18,780,000) 
(1.,150,000) 

(4,518) 
(185.052\ 

4 ,627,930 

(435.971) 

Total Net Assets -
Governmental Activities 

$(5,149,699) 

8 ,875,039 

4.191,959 

414,015 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Net assets unrestricted Cdeflcltl 

General fund - total fund balance: 
Add: 

Accrual basis Account Receivables 
Deduct: 

Bonds Payable related to Operational Debts 
Compensated absences debt 
Landfill Obligation 
Property tax debt - CRIM Law 42 
Property tax debt - CRIM Law 146 

Total net assets - governmental activities 

2.. DEPOSITS 

$2,016,669 

458,983 

(805,000) 
(1,857,908) 
(2,374,168) 

(227,058) 
(611,6091 

13.400.091> 

$4.931223 

Under Puerto Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banks must be fully 
collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depository insurance. All 
securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury of Puerto Rico. In 
addition, the Municipality maintains deposits with the Government Development Bank for 
Puerto Rico (GOB). 

The Municipality's bank balances in commercial banks of approximately $5,476, 760, 
$351,761 and $1,821,360 In the general fund, special revenue fund - other federal grants, 
and capital projects fund - local and state grants, respectively, were fully collateralized at 
June 30, 2004. In the other governmental funds there were deposits with commercial banks 
of approximately$ 664,533 that were fully collateralized. 

The deposits at GOB of approximately $7,898,501 that is restricted principally for capital 
projects in the capital project fund - local and state grant, $103,960 restricted for operational 
expenditures in the general fund, and the $4,524,007 in the debt service fund are unsecured 
and uncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried by governmental banks. 

3. RECEIVABLES 

A. Municipal License Tax- The Municipality impose a municipal license tax on all businesses 
that operate within the Municipality, which a re not totally or partially exempt from the tax 
pursuant to the Industrial Incentives Acts of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This is a 
self-assessed tax based on the business volume in gross sales as shown in the tax return 
that is due on April 24 of each year. Entities with sales volume of $1,000,000 or more 
must include audited financial statements together with the tax return. During the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2004, the tax rates were as follows: 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

3. RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 

1. Financial business- 1.50% of gross revenues 

:2. Other organizations- 0 .50% of gross revenues 

This tax is due in two equal installments on July 1 and january 1 of each fiscal year. A 
discount of 5% is allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15. Municipal 
license tax receivable represents filed municipal license tax returns that were uncollected 
as of June 30, 2004, net of allowance for uncollectible. 

Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year are 
recorded as deferred revenues. 

B. Intergovernmental Receivables- Intergovernmental receivables in the general fund 
principally consist of the amounts due from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority 
("PREPA") resulting from the estimated revenues the Municipality is entitled to receive in 
lieu of payment of taxes, and the amounts due from the Municipal Revenue Collection 
Center (•CRIM") of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico resulting from property tax 
collections related to the amnesty granted through the Public Law 7 4, enacted in March 1, 
2004, The amounts receivable from governmental entities are as follows: 

Governmental _Entity 

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority ("PREPA") 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center rcRJM") 

Total 

Amount 

$107,357 
141.491 

$248.848 

The contribution in lieu of tax receivable from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority 
reported above represent an estimated amount as described in the Note 1 (E) (2), because 
the final contribution amount from the PREPA for the fiscal year 2003-2004 was not 
available. Also, as described in Note 14, there is a formula to determine the contribution on 
lieu of taxes to be distributed to the municipalities. 

Intergovernmental receivable in debt service fund represents property tax receivable at 
June 20, 2004. Following is a detail of the intergovernmental receivable: 

Governmental Entity Amount 

Municipal Revenue Collection Center ("CRIM") $109.105 

Total $109105 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAl STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

3 . RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 

Intergovernmental receivable in capit:;il project funds local and state grants represent 
funds assignments by state government to the municipality at year end. Following is a 
detail of the intergovernmental receivable: 

Program Description 

Department of Treasury 

Total 

AmoLJot 

$101.700 

$1Q1700 

Intergovernmental receivable in other governmental funds represent expenditures 
incurred not yet reimbursed by local and state government. Following ·is a detail of the 
intergovernmental receivable: 

Program Pescriotlon Amount 

Department of Labor $480.806 

Total $480,806 

Intergovernmental receivable in special revenue fund - other federal. grants represent 
expenditures incurred not yet reimbursed by federal government or the pass-through 
grantor. Following is a detail of the intergovernmental receivable: 

Program Description 

Community Service Block Grant 
Highway Planning an Construction 
Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program 
Nutntion Program for the Elderly 
Community Development Block Grants/ State's Program 
Special Programs for Aging - Title Ill 

Total 

4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Amount 

$ 15,015 
4.391 

53.158 
3,120 

288,450 
73.771 

$437,905 

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2004, and interfund transfers during the 
fiscal year ended at June 30, 2004, are summarized as follows: 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINAN~ft)l_ STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

a. Due from/to other fund: 

Receivable Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

Community 
Development Block 
Grants- Section 
108 Loan 
Guarantees 

Special Programs 
for Aging - Title Ill 

Total 

Payable Fund 

Debt Service Fund 

Special Revenue Fund­
Federal Grants-Community 
Service Block Grant 

Special Revenue Fund - Local 
Grants-Law 52 Program 

Special Revenue Fund - Local 
Grants - Law 82 Program 

Special Revenue Fund - Other 
federal Grants- Community 
Development Block Grant/ 
State's Program 

Special Revenue Fund - Other 
Federal Grants- Special 
Programs for Aging - Title 
Ill 

Special Revenue Fund - Other 
Federal Grants- Nutrition 
Program for the Elderly 

General Fund 

General Fund 

Puroose 

Interest Revenue 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Payroll and related accruals 
paid and not reimbursed 

Program Income Revenue 

Matching Contribution 

Amount 

$ 8,044 

14,956 

41,645 

557,480 

29,022 

3,500 

12,000 

9,785 

30.000 

U06.~32 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

b. Transfer in/out to other fund 

Transfer out Transfer In Puroose 

Transfer of funds for 
Enterpnse Fund General Fund operatingpurposes 

Special Revenue Fund - Other 
General Fund Federal Grants Matching Contribution 

Special Revenue Fund - Local 
General Fund and State Grants Creation of a New Fund 

General Fund Debt Service Fund Debt retirement 

Total 

Amount 

$310,000 

177,116 

2 1,879 

$869,819 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time, of 
acquisition by the Municipality and a cost of $25 or more, are primarily funded through the 
issuance of long-term bonds and 'loans. A sumrnary of capital assets and changes occurring 
in 2004, including those changes pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, 
follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation: 

Balance Balaru;e 
Governmental Activities: Jutx 1 ~ooa Additions R~tiremeats lUn!: 3Q, 2004 

as Restated 

Capital asset, not being 
depreciated: 

Land $ 2,923,521 $ 1,038,754 $ - $ 3,962,275 
Construction in progress a~o.832 1,677,41~ (28l,a5a) 1,126,a94 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 3,254,353 2.716,169 (281.B53l 5,688.629 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 8,064,917 8 ,064,917 
Buildings improvements 723,563 625,255 1,348,818 
Infrastructure 515,091 575,432 1 ,090,523 
Infrastructure improvements 206,170 206,170 
Equipment 1,664,910 457,832 (33,080) 2,089,662 
Furnishing 241,486 26,542 (17,749) 250,279 
Work of Arts 8,003 8 ,003 
Computers 228,352 19,827 (1,254) 246,925 
Vehicles 4,890,258 2,66,035 (10,211} 5,l.4ll.Q~2 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 16,336,580 2.179,09~ {62,294} 18,453,J79 

Less accumulated depreciation for. 

Buildings (3,308,521) (201,622) (3,510,143) 
Buildings improvements (65,763) (27,557) (93,320) 
Infrastructure (4,280) (18,956) (23,236) 
Infrastructure improvements (4,216) (4,216) 
Equipment (1,198,784) (188,964) 32,501 (1,355,24 7) 
Furnishing (170,587) (25,169) 17,678 (178,078) 
Computers (132,859) (54 ,160) 1,194 (185,825) 
Work of Arts (6,670) (800) (7,470) 
Vehicles (3,240,193} {584,660 1Q,211 (3,814,642) 

Total accumulated depreciation {8,127,657) (1,106,;!.04) {61,584) {9,172,177) 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 8,208,923 1,072,989 (710} 9,281,202 

Governmental activities capital 
assets, net ~ ll1~63,2Z6 $ 3.Z891158 ~ !282,5Q3l ~ 14,9~9.8Z1 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FI NANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/ programs ofthe Municipality as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Urban Development 
Community Development 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 

$ 513,277 
178,760 
318,067 

74,261 
13,062 

8,677 

$1106.104 

Balance 
Business - type Activities 

Capital asset, not being 
depreciated: 

Balance 
July :1., 2003 Additions Retirements June 30. 2004 

Land and Co~truction in 
Progress 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Building 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Building 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

Business Type. Activities capital 
assets, net 

$ 388.790 $ 45.400 ~$ ___ _ - $ 434.190 

388.790 45.400 434.190 

3 .537.4 58 3.537.458 

3..537,458 3.537.458 

(611.685) (88.437) (700.122) 

{611,685} (88.437} U00.122) 

2 .925.773 188.437) 2.837.~ 

$ 3 314.563 $ 143.03ZI '5.$==== ~ 3 2Z115~6 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 

Business -Type Activities 

General government $ 88.437 

Total depreciation expens.e-governmental activities $ 88,437 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

6. PROPERTY TAXES 

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by 
May 15 of each year with the CRIM, a governmental entity created by the government of 
Puerto Rico as part of the Municipal Governmental Autonomous Law of August 1991. Real 
property tax 1s asse.ssed by the CRIM on each piece of real estate and on each building. 

The assessment is made as of January l of each year and is based on current values for 
personal property and on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on 
personal property must be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real 
property may be paid in two installments by July 1 and January 1. The CRIM is responsible for 
the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf of all the 
municipalities of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs the 
Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collect for the ensuing 
f iscal year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on the 
initial estimated collections. The CRIM is required by law to prepare a settlement statement 
on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the 
Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. This settlement has to be 
completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year-end, and a final 
settlement made not later than six months after year-end. If the CRIM remits to the 
Municipality property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable 
from the CRIM is recorded at June 30. However, it advances.exceed the amount actually 
collected by the CRIM, a payable to the CRIM is recorded at June 30. 

On January 26, 2000, Public Law 42 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to obtain a loan 
up to $200,000,000, and for a term not to exceeding 10 years, to allow for the financing of 
the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final 
settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections through fiscal year ended June 
30, 2000. The amounts that the Municipalities will collect from additional property taxes 
resulting from increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to the 
Municipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy 
was the result of the Public Law 238, enacted on August 15, 1999. On October 11, 2001, 
Public Law 146 was enacted to amend Public Law 42, to extend the loan amortization period 
up to 30 years. 

Also, on October 11, 2002, Public Law 172 was enacted, to provide as an option for the 
Municipalities to include the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM 
arising f rom final settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2001 with the loan authorized through Public Law 42 enacted on 
January 26, 2000. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

6. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED) 

On June 26, 1997, Public Law 21 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to sell property tax 
receivables related to taxpayers who owned property taxes from 197 4 to 1996. The property 
tax receivables were purchased by Public Financing Corporation, a subsidiary of the 
Government Development Bank (GOB), with proceeds of a bonds issuance. This Law imposes 
to the CRIM the obligation to replace any uncollectible property tax receivable with any valid 
property tax receivables or equivalent in money. 

A high percentage of receivables were determined to be uncollectible receivables, and 
therefore, on October 11, 2001, Public Law 146 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to 
obtain a loan to pay in advance the bonds issued by the Public Financing Corporation (a GOB 
subsidiary), and any costs related to the transaction. Also, a term not to exceeding 30 years 
was authorized to the financing of the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with 
the CRIM arising from the sale of property tax receivables to the Public Financing Corporation 
(a GOB Subsidiary). 

The government wide statement of net assets includes an outstanding debt balance of 
$227 ,058 and $$611,609 related to law 42 and Law 146 respectively. 

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property 
taxes on the first$ 15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the Puerto 
Rico Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities, except for 
property assessed at less than $ 3,500 for which no payment is made. As part of the 
Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to be paid by the Puerto Rico 
Treasury department to the Municipalities was frozen as of January 1, 1992. In addition, the 
law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property taxes of up to$ 50,000 of 
the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than$ 150,000. 

The annual tax rate is 8.83% for real property and 6.83% for personal property of which 1.03% 
of both tax rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico. The remaining percent~ge is distributed as follows: (a} 5.8% and 3.80%, respectively, 
represents the Municipalrty's basic property tax rate which is appropriated for basics and 
accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization 
fund together with a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico electronic; lottery and a 
subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund. a distribution is made to all 
municipalities; (b) 2.00% represents the ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and 
accounted for in the debt service fund. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICl?>\l.ITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

7. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES: 

The amounts due to other governmental entities in the General Fund include the following: 

Governmental Entity 
Mumc:ipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) - Property Taxes 
Retirement System Administration 
Internal Revenue Service 
Department of Treasury 
General Services Administration 
Department of L.abOr - Unemployment 
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 
Total 

8. DEFERRED RE¥ENUES 

Amount 
$ 739,848 

91,675 
2,708 
2,010 
1,649 

18,688 
38.405 

$ 894983 

A Municipal license Tax- The deferred revenues of approximately $3,083,636 in the general 
fund relates to municipal license tax collected in fiscal year 2003-04 that will be earned in 
fiscal year 2004-05. 

B Federal Government- The deferred revenues presented in special revenue fund- other 
federal grants represents the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying 
expenditures have not been incurred. Deferred revenues from the federal government are 
as follows: 

Program Description 

Emergency Management Performance Grants 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 

Section 108 Loan Guarantee 

Community Development Block Grants/State's 
Program 

Child Care and Development Block Grant 

Others 

Total 

Amount 

$ 25,257 

27,256 

151.965 

54,543 

57.227 

12.006 

$328254 

39 



t 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPAlllY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

8 . DEFERRED REVENUES (CONTINUED) 

The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds represent the portion of 
federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not been incurred. 
Deferred revenues from the federa l government are as follows: 

Program pescriotlon 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 

Child and Adult Care Food Program 

Head Start 

Total 

9 . LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Amount 

$135,179 

40,857 

1.2§7 

$177.303 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2004, was as follows: 

&~ginning Bo[rQWjnf!s Pa)'.ments or Ending 
oescrlotlon Balance or Additions Deductions Balance 

Bonds Payable $ 14,035,000 $ 6,685,750 $(1,135,750) $ 19,585,000 

Notes Payable 1,870,750 370,000 (1,090,750) 1,150,000 

Lease Obligation.Cross 
Border 224 .845 (39,793) 185,052 

Lease Obligat ion-IBM 39,668 (35,150) 4,518 

Property Tax Debt- Law 42 
&Law 146 859,074 (20,407) 838,667 

Compensated Absences 1,762 ,904 95,004 l,857,908 

Landfill obligation 3,270,010 (895,842) 2 ,374,168 

Puerto Rico Electric Power 
Authority 59,020 (59,020) 

Department of Labor 85,775 185.775) 

Total i 2~1~8Q26 i Z1209.1I4 $£3 362,~BZl $ 25 995,31J 

gyeWlth!a 
One Year 

$1,370,000 

320,000 

52,754 

4 ,518 

20,407 

150,000 

1,010,648 

S 2 928 32Z 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

1 .. Legal debt margin- The Municipality is subject to a legal debt margin requirement, which is 
equal to 10% of the total assessment of property located within the Municipality plus 
balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable to be repaid 
with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt service In addition, before any new 
bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be sufficient to cover the 
projected debt service requirement. Long-term debt, except for the bonds and notes 
payable (excluding notes payable to the Land Authority), is paid with unrestricted funds. 

2. Bonds payable- The Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds to provide 
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. During the current 
year the municipal legislature authorized a bond issuances for approximately $5,960,000 
Bonds payable outstanding atJune 30, 2004 are as follows: 

Matyrttx Original Range of Bi!IDns;;e Sit 
Jyoe of b9nds Date Amount lnttir~l BilH Ju~;3Q, 2QQ1 

1986-Series 7-1-2006 500,000 8.00% $ 5 0,000 
1987-5eries 7-1-2006 810,000 9.00% 155,000 
1987-$eries 7-1-2006 1.,545,000 9.00% 295,000 
1992-5eries 7-1-2007 $1,860,000 6.26% to 6.4.1.% 755,000 
1993-Series 7-1-2008 150,000 7 .21% to 7 .61% 30.000 
1995-Series 7-1-2007 765,000 7.21% to7.~1% 310,000 
1996-Series 7-1-2014 2,750.000 5.80% to 6.58% 2,095,000 
1997-Serres 7-1-2009 2 .650.000 5 .29% to 5.78% 1,545.000 
1997-Series 7-1-2016 290,000 6.00% 215.000 

1997 Series 7-1-2016 110,000 6.00% 70,000 
199S..Series 7-1-2013 3.675.000 5.29% to6.11% 2,855,000 
1998-Series 7-1-2012 1.065.000 5.29% to 6 .04% 775,000 
2000-Serles 7-1-2013 65,000 2.80% to 4 .61% 50.000 
2000-Serles 7-1-2025 310,000 2.80% to 5 .60% 295.000 
2000.Senes 7-1-2020 1,500,000 2.80% to 5.29% 1,390,000 
2002-Series 7-1-2026 2,850,000 2.80% to 5.60% 2,770,000 
2004-Series 7-1-2028 550,000 5.00% to 6.00% 550,000 
20()4.Senes 7-1-2023 3,150,000 2.40% to 5.00% 3,150,000 
2004-Senes 7-1-2023 115,000 5.00% to 6.00% 115,000 
2004-Series 7-1-2023 1,860,000 2.36% to 5.00% 1,860,000 
2004-Senes 7-1-2010 285,000 5.00% to 6 .00% 2~5,000 

Total general obligation bonds s1~.~a~.ooo 

These bonds, except the 1986 Series bonds amounting to $500,000, the 1997 Series 
bonds for $110,000 and $290,000, the 1987 Series bonds for $1,545,000 and 
$810,000 and the 2004 Series bonds amounting to $285,000, are payable from the ad 
valorem property tax of 2.00% which is restricted for debt service and retained by the 
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALllY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Annual debt service requirements to 1naturity for bonds payable are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June30. Prlncloa! lntec~l 

2005 $ 1 ,370,000 $ 914,384 
2006 1,495,000 960,108 
2007 1,335,000 877,115 
2008 1,425,000 799,498 
2009 1,210,000 725,160 
2010-2014 5,665,000 2.645.530 
201S..2019 3.005.000 1.450,688 
2020-2024 3,150,000 673,365 
202S..2029 930,000 92.070 
2030-2034 

Total s 19585000 ~ il 1~z ~16 

3. Notes Payable- The proceeds of the issuance of notes payables were used principally to 
pay debt incurred in prior years and to covef the expenditures of a special event. During 
the current year the municipal legislature authorized a notes issuances for approximately 
$370,000 The notes are payable as follows: 

Tyoe of notes 
2000-Series 
2001-Series 
2002-Senes 
2004-Series 

Total notes payable 

Maturity 
Date 

7-1.-2005 
7-1-2005 
7-1-2006 
7-1-2010 

Or!g!nal 
Amount 

230,000 
235,000 
885,000 
370,000 

Range of 
Interest rates 

2.80% to 2.89% 
2.80% to 2 .89% 
2 .80% to 3 .21% 
5 .00% to 6.00% 

Balance at 
June 30. 2004 

$ 105,000 
105,000 
570,000 
370000 

$1150000 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows: 

Y~ar Emllog 
Juoe 30. Pr!ncipal toterest 

2005 $ 320,000 $ 36,475 
2006 345,000 29,066 
2007 255,000 18,590 
2008 50,000 12,300 
2009 55,000 9,150 
2010.2014 12~.000 I.§~Q 
Total S l,15Q,QOO ~l~~ ~~i 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

4. Lease Obligations- The Municipality has entered into a lease agreement as lessee for 
financing the acquisition of a 2002 Ford Winnebago to be used as an electronic library. 
This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, 
has been recorded at the present value of its future minimum lease payments as of the 
inception date. 

The assets acquired through the capital lease are as follows: 

2002 Ford Winnebago 
Less: 
Acc.umulated Depreciation 

Net value 

Governmental 
ActMtes 

$231.845 

(81.146) 

$150.699 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease 
payments as of June 30, 2004, were as follows: 

Year ending 
June 30. 
.2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less amount representing Interest 

Present value of minimum lease payments 

Governmental 
Actlvites 

$ 5.2,754 
52,754 
52,754 
52.754 

211,016 
(25.964) 

$185,052 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABIUTIES (CONTINUED} 

During the fiscal year June 30, 1999 the Municipality acquired computer equipment under 
a capital lease. The capital lease to IBM Credit Corp. is payable in monthly installments of 
$4,546 which includes interests at 7.48% through June 30, 2004. Total principal 
payments during the current year amounted to $35,150. 

The assets acquired through the capital lease are as follows: 

1999 Ford Winnebago 
Less; 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Net value 

Governmental 
Activftes 

$ 227,000 

£227.000) 

$ 

The outstanding debt balance as of June 30, 2004 amounts to $4,518. The debt service 
requirements to maturity including $28 of interest are as follows: 

Year end;ng 
Jyne 30. 
2005 

Governmental 
Activltes 
$4546 

5. Property Tax Debt- These amounts represent the balance owned to the Municipal Revenue 
Collection Center (CRIM) at June 30, 2004, as described in Note 6. 

6. Compensated absences- The government-wide statement of net assets includes 
approximately $1,081,265 of accrued sick leave benefits, and approximately $776,643 of 
accrued vacation benefits, representing the Municipality's commitment to fund such costs 
from future operations. 

7. Landfill obligation- State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to place 
a final cover on its landfill site when closed and perform certain maintenance and 
monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. In accordance with 
Statement No. 18 of the GASS, ''Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and 
Post Closure Care Costs", the Municipality has performed a study of the activities that 
need to be implemented at the Municipality's landfill to comply with applicable state and 
federal regulations. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

As of June 30, 2004 the Municipality entered in an agreement with a contrac.:tot to complete 
the final cover of the landfill for a total cost of $873,569 and additional inspection, 
monitoring, and supervision costs amounting to $90,079 for a total costs of $963,648. The 
annual estimate of closure costs presented in the prior year financial statement was restated 
as a result of the decrease in final cover costs. Based on this, the Municipality has recognized 
$963,648 as the Municipality's estimated current cost for landfill closure as of June 30, 
2004. The preliminary annual estimate of post closure costs has been assessed 
approximately to be $1,410,520 for a period of approximately 30 years. Actual costs may be 
different due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in laws and regulations. As of 
June 30, 2004, the Municipality's landfill facilities have been closed. The balance of closure 
and post-closure costs of $963,648 and $1,410,520, respectively, are reported in the 
government-wide statement of net assets. 

8. Operating leases-The Municipality is obligated under certain leases accounted for as 
operating leases. Operating leases do not give rise to property rights or lease obligations, 
and therefore the results of the lease agreements are not reflected in the Municipality's 
financial statements. 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental payments under operating 
leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of 
June 30, 2004: 

Year Ending 
June 30. 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
Total minimum payments 
required 

9. Revenue Bonds-Enterprise Funds 

Governmental 
Atjlvltes 

$ 75,820 
64,858 
16,234 
8,218 
8.218 

$173348 

In 1994, the Municipality issued $2,090,000 revenue bonds, in which the Municipality 
pledges rent income from the enterprise fund ( completed construction by July 1996 of 
the "Commercial Pavilion Rafael Hernandez Colon") to pay such debt. On January 18, 
2000 the Municipality formalizes a revenue bond payable with Banco Santander Puerto 
Rico. This loan was used to refinance the outstanding loan with Governmental 
Development Bank at 9.00%. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BAStC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

The note will be paid by semi-yearly iristallments of $103,280, which includes interest at 
7.25% for the first ten years. After the first ten years, the l'\llunicipality can exercise the 
option to fully repay the outstanding balance of $943,238 or refinance the debt at an 
interest rate determined by the lesser of 9.50% or 1.00% over the London Interbank 
Offered Rate (l.l .B.O.R.) +1%). Total principa i payments during the current year amounted 
to $87 ,018. The outstanding debt balance as of June 30, 2004 amounts to $1,547, 789. 
The debt service requirements to maturity including $540,714 of interest are as follows: 

Year Ending 
~ 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
lhereafter 
Total 

10. PENSION PLAN 

Principal 

$96,733 
103,874 
111,541 
119,774 
128,615 
987.252 

s 1 ,547789 

Interest 

$109,827 
102,686 

95,019 
86,786 
77,945 
68.451 

$540,714 

The Employee's Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its Instrumentalities (the 
Retirement System) is a cost-sharing multiple defined benefit pension plan sponsored by, and 
reported as a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. All reg1..1lar employees of 
the Municipality under 55 years of age at the date of employment become members of the 
Retirement System as a condition to their employment. 

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to 
legislation enacted by the Commonwealth's legislature. Disability retirernf:lnt benefits are 
available to members for occupational and non~occupational disabilities. Retirement benefits 
depend upon age at retirement and the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest 
after ten years of plan participation. 

Members who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of 
creditable service or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten 
years of creditable service are entitled to an annual benefit payable monthly for life. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

10 PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The amount of the annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation, as 
defined, multiplied by the number of years ot creditable service up to twenty years, plus two 
percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of 
creditable service in excess of 20 years. In no case will the annuity be less than $200 per 
month. 

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive 
the Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent 
of the average compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the 
average compensation, as defined. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a 
refund of his/her accumulated contributions. 

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5. 775% for the first $550 of their 
monthly gross salary and 8.275% for the excess over $ 550 of monthly gross salary. The 
Municipality is required by the same statute to contribute 9.275% of the participant's gross 
salary. Total employee and employer contributior:is during the year ended June 30, 2004 
amounted to approximately $427,249 and $478,880, respectively. 

On September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act. No. 44 7 of May 15, 1951, which created the 
Retirement System, was enacted with the purpose of establishing a new pension program 
(System 2000). Employee's participation in the current system as of December 31, 1999, 
may elect to stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to the new program. Persons joining 
the Municipality on or after January 1. 2000, w ill only be allowed to become members of 
System 2000. System 2000 will reduce the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those 
employees who joined the current plan on or after April 1, 1990. 

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under 
this new plan, there will be a pool of pension assets, which will be invested by ERS together 
with those of the current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico will not 
guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity will be based on a formula which assumes 
that each year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of 8.275% to the employee's 
salary up to a maximum of 10%) will be invested in an account which will either: (1) earn a 
f ixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury Note or, (2) earn a rate equal to 
75% of the return of the ERS's investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) earn a 
combination of both alternatives. Participants will receive periodic account statements similar 
to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability pensions will 
not be granted under System 2000. The employer's contribution (9.275% of the employee's 
salary) will be used to fund the current plan. 

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the 
year ended June 30, 2004, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement System, 
Minillas Station, P.O. Box 42003, San Juan, PR 00940-2003. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FJNANCIA~STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Finance Department is responsible of assuring that the Municipality's property is property 
insured. Annually, the Finance Department Division compiles the information of all property 
owned and its respective market value. After evaluating this information, the Finance 
Department Division submits the data regarding the Municipality's properties to the Public 
Insurance Department at the Department of the Treasury of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
who is responsible for purchasing all property and casualty insurance policies of all 

. municipalities. 

12. CONTINGENCIES 

The Municipality is a defendant in a number of lawsuits arising principally from the ordinary 
course of the Municipality's activities. It is the opinion of the Municipality's management and 
the Municipality's attorney that any losses not covered by insurance which may ultimately be 
incurred as a result of the suits and claims will not be material. As a result, the accompanying 
general-purpose financial statements do not include adjustments, if any, that could result 
from the resolution of these legal proceedings. 

13.BEGINNING FUND BALANCES AND NET ASSETS RESTATEMENT: 

The beginning Fund Balance for General Fund has been restated by approximately $30,456 to 
properly presents the previously reported fund balance at June 30, 2003. The restatement is 
mainly due to the reclassification of cash balance from the General Fund to the Capital 
Projects Fund, to recognize a Debt Service Fund interest receivable, reclassification of cash 
balance from special revenue fund~federal grant related to reimbursements of costs financed 
by the General Fund, and due to a condoned Treasury Department interest and penalties debt 
as of June 30, 2003. 

The beginning Fund Balance for Debt Service Fund has been restated by approximately 
$1,080,607 to properly presents the previously reported fund balances at June 30, 2003. 
The restatement is mainly due to the recognition of the amount due from CRIM related to the 
final liquidation of the fiscal year 2002-2003. 

The beginning Fund Balance for Capital Projects Fund has been restated by $140,892 to 
properly presents the previously reported fund balances at June 30, 2003. The restatement is 
mainly due to the reclassification of cash bala nee from the General Fund to the Capital 
Projects Fund. 

The beginning Fund Balance for the Special Revenue Fund-State and Local grants in the Other 
Governmental Funds section has been restated by approximately $5,139 to properly present 
the previously reported fund balance at June 30, 2003. The restatement is mainly due to the 
reclassification of cash balance to Special Revenue Fund- Other Federal Grants and to the 
General Fund. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

13.BEGINNING FUND BALANCES AND NET ASSETS RESTATEMENT {CONTINUED): 

The beginning Net Assets for Governmental Activities has been restated by approximately 
$585,148 to properly present the previously reported Net Assets at June 30, 2003. The 
restatement is mainly due to the decrease in landfiU closing and post closing obligation 
resulting from the final cover process, to recognize interest payable of long term debts and to 
adjust capital assets beginning balance. 

14.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On August 27, 2004, the Municipality of Dorado authorized the issuance of a general 
obligation bond for the amount of $50;000, for Housing Rehabilitation. Repayment of the 
bond is scheduled f rom July 2005 through July 2014. 

On August 27, 2004, the Municipality of Dorado authorized the issuance of a general 
obligation bond for the amount of $945,000, for Housing Rehabilitation. Repayment of the 
bond is scheduled from July 2005 through July 2019. 

On September 7. 2004, Public Law 255 was enacted to amend Section 22 o'f the Public Law 
83 of May 2, 1941, know as the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority (~PREPA") Act. This Law 
stipule a new formula to determine the contribution in lieu of taxes to be distributed to the 
Municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From fiscal year 2002-2003 the PREPA is 
required by law to distribute as contribution in lieu of taxes a twenty percent of its net 
revenues, after deduction of subsides granted, or an amount equal to the actual cost of 
electric power consumed by each Municipality, or an average of the contribution in lieu of 
taxes paid to each Municipality in the last five fiscal years, whichever is greater. 
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COMMONWEALTH Of PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPAUIY OF DORADO 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 
(SEE NOTES TO BUDGETARYCOMPARISON SCHEDULE) 

YEAR ENDEu JUNE 30, 2004 

Actual Amounts 
l!l.!!:!~t!ld Am2!.10lli (Budgetary Basis} 

Orlglnal Fina I (See Note 1) 

REVENUES ANO OTHER FINANCING SOURCES· 
Prooerty taxes $ 7.354 719 $ 9.042.013 $ 8.900.632 
Municipal license tax 3.194.485 3,194485 3,580,716 
Licenses. permits and other local taxes 1,520,000 1,520,0QO 2,161,314 
Charges for service 13,800 13,800 17,503 
Intergovernmental 1.:n.5.685 1.215.685 1.912,885 
Rent of property 275,316 275,316 270,805 
Fines and forfeitures 10,000 10,000 2,205 
Interest 550,000 550.000 188,830 
Mlscellaneous 1.500,000 1.525.580 164,155 
Transfer an from other fond 310,0QO 310,000 
Budgeted Carryaver 400,000 400000 

Total revenues other financing sources and budget 15 634005 18 056819 1Z 909045 
carryover 

EXPENOIT\JRES, ENCUMBRANCES ANO OTHER 
FINANCING USES: 

Current 
GeMiill government 7,733.603 9,817.292 9,725.964 
Public safety 1,479,898 1,290,686 1.,270,741 
Publlcworks 5.279,676 5,877,762 5.886.039 
Culture and recreation 583,960 553,353 550,039 
Operating transfer to otner fund 556868 517 786 5&9.819 

Total exl)endltures, encumbrances and other financing lfi. 63~ QQ5 18 056 SZ9 li 992602 
uses 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENOnuRES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTliER 
FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ s $ !~~Zl 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (141.381) 
386,231 
641,314 

3,703 
697,200 

(4,511) 
(7. 795) 

(361.,j70) 
(1.361.425) 

IUZB3!ll 

91,328 
i9,945 
(8.277) 

3,314 
!42.033) 

64 2ZZ 

s. .{83 551-.l 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED) 
AND NOTES TO S~bGE'TARY COMPARISON 

YEAR ENDED JlJNE 30, 2004 

Explanallon of Differences. 

~urces,llnlloM of resources· 
At;tual amounts (budgetary basis)"ava1lable for approprlation' from the budgetary compc11isun sctieclul!! 
Differences-budget to GAAP: 

Interest Receivable collected during 2004-2005 
Conslruction ExciSe Tait Receivable COiiected during 2004-2005 
Municipal License Tait receivable collected during 2004-2005 
Rent Receivat>le collected during 2004-2005 
CRIM receivables collected during 2004-2005 and read1usted In 200'l-2005 budget 
Transter In from other fund 
Budgeted Carryover 

Total revenues as reported on me S18tementof revenues, expenc!ltures, and changes In lund balanct>S 

Uses/outflows of resources 

Actlial amounl!i (btJctgetary baS!s)"total charges to appropriauons" from the b Udgetal)I wmpar150n scl')eoule 

Diffcrences-bu<Jget to GAAP: 

AUJu~uncnt to bpemlllures-Operanom11 I.Oars. 
P11or year encumbrances recorded as current year e~penditures for GMP basis 
Curreot year encumbrances recorded as expenoltures for budgetary purposes 
Operating transfer to othet fund 

Total expenditures as reponed on ttie statement of revenues. expenditures. and changes in fund balances 

:1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary Control 

$ 17,909,045 

5,533 
28,302 

7,045 
31,070 

141,491 
(310,000) 
1400 QQQ) 

s 17 412 486 

$ 17,992,602 

53,773 
119,004 

(b63,011) 
--· !559 819) 

1.,17 042 54Q 

The Municipality's annual b1.1dget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting, 
which is not in accordance with GMP, and represents departmental appropriat ions 
recommended by the Mayor and approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the 
beginning of the fisca l year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the 
Municipal Legislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as Mayor's 
Resolutions, do not require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. 

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fl.Ind. 

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e., 
purchase orders, contracts) are cohsfdered expenditures when incurred. For GMP 
reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations 
of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the 
commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1.. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 

The unencumber:ed balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse 
at the end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project 
appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has 
authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made 
available for current spending. 

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is 
the budget ordinance at June 30, 2004 representing the original budget. There were no 
supplemental appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2004. 
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